
TOWN OF WEAVERVILLE 

Town Hall Council Chambers 
30 South Main Street 
Weaverville, NC 28787 
 
 
 

AGENDA 

November 19, 2018 
Regular Meeting at 7:00 pm 

 
  Pg 

# 
Presenter 

    
1. Call to Order .....................................................................................................................  Vice-Mayor Jackson 
    
2. Approval/Adjustments to the Agenda ............................................................................  Vice-Mayor Jackson 
    
3. Approval of Minutes …………………………………………………………………………………………………...  Vice-Mayor Jackson 
 A. September 11, 2018 Town Council Special-Called Meeting  

B. October 15, 2018 Town Council Special-Called Meeting 
C. October 15, 2018 Town Council Regular Meeting 

1 
4 
7 

 

    
4. General Public Comments …………………………………………………………………………………………..  Vice-Mayor Jackson 
    
5. Consent Agenda  Town Manager 
 A. Monthly Tax Report ..................................................................................................... 12  
 B. Tax Releases ................. .............................................................................................. 14  
 C. Acceptance of Property Donation-Lake Louise/Mayfair Partners, LLC ........................ 15  
 D. Comprehensive Land Use Plan Update ....................................................................... 20  
 E. Approval of Architectural Services Contract for Community Center Project .............. 22  
    
6. Town Manager’s Report .................................................................................................. 66 Town Manager 
    
7. Discussion & Action Items   
 A. FY 2017-2018 Audit Presentation ................................................................................ 67 Travis Keever 
 B. FY 2017-2018 ABC Audit Presentation ........................................................................ 78 Rob Chason 
 C. Approval of Final Strategic Plan Draft ......................................................................... 108 Town Manager 
 D. July 4/Fireworks Discussion ......................................................................................... 127 Town Manager 
 E. Sale of Bus Garage - 13 Central Avenue ...................................................................... 140 Town Attorney / 

Town Manager 
 F. Quarterly Report – Police Department ...........………………………………………………........… 155 Police Chief 
 G. Quarterly Report – Fire Department ........................................................................... 160 Fire Chief 
    
8. Adjournment …………………………………………………………………………………………………...………….  Vice-Mayor Jackson 

 



 

 
Page 1 of 3  September 11, 2018  
  Town Council Special Called Meeting 
 

                       
                        MINUTES 
 

Town of Weaverville    Town Council Special Called Meeting 
State of North Carolina Tuesday, September 11, 2018 
 
The Town Council for the Town of Weaverville met for a Special Called Meeting on Tuesday, September 11, 2018, at 
6:00 p.m. in Council Chambers within Weaverville Town Hall at 30 South Main Street, Weaverville, North Carolina. 
 
Council members present were: Mayor Al Root, Councilman Andrew Nagle, Vice Mayor/Councilman Doug Jackson, 
Councilman Patrick Fitzsimmons and Councilman Jeffery McKenna. Councilwoman Dottie Sherrill was absent. 
 
Staff present was: Town Attorney Jennifer Jackson, Town Clerk Derek Huninghake, Town Planner James Eller, Finance 
Officer Tonya Dozier and Public Works Director Dale Pennell. 
 
1. Call to Order 

Mayor Al Root called the meeting to order at 6:00 p.m. 
 

2. Discussion Items: 
A.) Community Center 
Public Works Director Dale Pennell opened the meeting with a brief overview on how the Town has gotten to this 
point. Back in May, he worked with an architect to develop a conceptual site plan that included the building and a 
layout of the building. At that same time, Town Council voted to place the Eller Cove Watershed funds into a Capital 
Fund for the new community center. Since then, the Public Works Department has been doing site preparations and 
background work to prepare for the whole project.  Mr. Pennell then discussed a tentative construction schedule that 
he helped develop. This construction schedule is attached.  
 
Town Council was very thankful for the tentative construction schedule that was presented, however it raised some 
concerns about the timing of each task.  
First, Mayor Root wanted to make sure that the Town was ready for Request for Proposals (RFP) from architects the 
third week of October, since it is only a month away.  
Councilman Fitzsimmons is hesitant to begin the process for RFPs if there wasn’t a business plan available yet. He 
believes the Town needs to figure out who is going to pay to staff the facility, what the rationale for a commercial 
kitchen is, and will the museum be providing any funding. 
Councilman Nagle acknowledged that there isn’t a business plan, but the Town needs to figure out the purpose of the 
community center. He doesn’t want it to be a visitor center, so we need to reach out to groups and see if they would be 
interested in using the facility. Some groups that might be interested would be the Boy Scouts, Women of America, 
and Weaverville Tailgate Market. 
Councilman McKenna wondered whether there will be any recreational opportunities around this community center.   
 
Public Works Director Dale Pennell commented that the Town is ready for RFPs, they hope to have it in the architects 
hand next week, and give them a couple weeks to get a proposal back. As for a business plan, the closest thing he can 
think of would be the completed Parks and Rec Master Plan and the recreational aspects were part of the overall 

1



 

 
Page 2 of 3  September 11, 2018  
  Town Council Special Called Meeting 
 

master plan for the track of property, however funding was planned to come from the PARTF grant and the Town is 
not eligible at this time. The Town could use the rooms inside the facility, but it could either be a large reception area 
for weddings and reunions, or a court for pickleball and tennis.  
 
Council determined that the Town needs to determine what the purpose of the community center is going to be and 
what will be the best way to have the building used. They need to reach out to groups and organizations around the 
area, and other Towns who have built a community center recently, to see what they would do differently and if they 
would use the community center.  
 
Mayor Root suggested that the Town goes forwarded with the RFP and nominated Vice Mayor/Councilman Jackson 
and Councilman Nagle to work with the Town Manager and Public Works Director to keep this plan on task and 
make sure every aspect is accounted for through workshops or meetings. 

 
B.) Land Use Plan 
Town Attorney Jennifer Jackson mentioned that she sent Town Council a comprehensive land use plan workshop 
packet and wanted to answer any questions that they may have about the land use plan.  
 
Mayor Root commented that in the land use packet it showed that the Town’s staff believed they would be the best 
option to take the lead in drafting the land use update, even though the Town has received a proposal from Land of 
Sky.  This brings about some questions as to a) is it something that staff could do? And b) what are the pros and cons 
of staff doing it instead Land of Sky?   
 
Town Attorney Jennifer Jackson commented that the comprehensive land use plan should be unique to Weaverville. 
There have been a lot of changes and growth in the Town in the last couple years, the new water treatment expansion 
will be a big factor and the old plan still reflects the ETJ, which is gone.  This will be a complicated process with 
having to utilize studies in order to support recommendations in the plan, however she believes our staff can do this 
project. It will be a long and involved process similar to the Table of Uses, and she expects that staff and committee 
time will be similar, but that there will be more involvement from Town Council, due to it being more policy driven.  
Town Attorney Jackson believes that there will be a better product with staff completing it, since they already know 
the information.  
 
Council discussed whether this long process would get in the way of staff completing their regular job tasks, but 
knows that they always have the option to outsource certain components of the process to Land of Sky if they need to 
as well.    
 
Town Planner James Eller commented that the Table of Uses process was labor intensive, but it didn’t interfere with 
his other job duties. 
 
Town Attorney Jennifer Jackson mentioned that they are busy and there will be some adjusted priorities that will have 
to be rearranged on their schedules, but they can make it all work.   
 
Council knows that at the end of the day we will have a better product, but most importantly the Town needs to get 
the public involved, either through workshops or advertisements, so that everyone is happy and on the same page. 
Also, reaching out to surrounding communities would be a good decision as well, since they will be affected by it too.  
 
Chairman Doug Theroux commented that he agrees with Town Council that staff can do the new Land Use Plan and 
do it better than outsourcing to another company. Yes, it will definitely put a time burden on them, but the good thing 
is that staff already has a foundation to start with from the old Land Use Plan.  

2



 

 
Page 3 of 3  September 11, 2018  
  Town Council Special Called Meeting 
 

 
Consensus was made by Council to have Town staff perform the new Land Use Plan with the help of other companies.  
 

3. Adjournment 
Vice Mayor/Councilman Jackson made the motion to adjourn; Councilman McKenna seconded and all voted to 
adjourn the Council’s meeting at 7:20 p.m. 

 
__________________________________________ 
Derek K. Huninghake, Town Clerk  

3



 

 
Page 1 of 3  October 15, 2018  
  Town Council Special-Called Meeting Minutes 
 

                       
                        MINUTES 
 

Town of Weaverville    Town Council Special Called Meeting 
State of North Carolina Monday, October 15, 2018 
 
The Town Council for the Town of Weaverville met for a Special-Called meeting on Monday, October 15, 
2018, at 6:30 p.m. in Council Chambers within Weaverville Town Hall at 30 South Main Street, Weaverville, 
North Carolina. 
 
Council members present were: Mayor Root, Vice Mayor/Councilman Doug Jackson, Councilwoman Dottie 
Sherrill, Councilman Andrew Nagle, Councilman Patrick Fitzsimmons and Councilman Jeff McKenna.  
 
Staff present was: Town Manager Selena Coffey, Town Attorney Jennifer Jackson, Town Clerk Derek 
Huninghake, Finance Officer Tonya Dozier, Police Chief Alan Wyatt, Fire Chief Ted Williams, Town Planner 
James Eller, Water Treatment Plant Supervisor Trent Duncan and Public Works Director Dale Pennell. 
 
1. Call to Order 

 
Mayor Al Root called the meeting to order at 6:30 p.m. 

 
2. Public Hearing: Proposed Code Amendments – Nonconformities, Conditional Zoning Districts, and 

Political Signage 
 
Mayor Root opened the Public Hearing. 

 
Town Planner James Eller started the Public Hearing by covering the proposed code amendments for 
Political Signage first. Currently, the Town is non-compliant with state statute on political signage, so staff 
has amended the code to include a definition and reference state statute. This will change the number of 
days to have signs removed after elections from two to ten days. Town Attorney Jennifer Jackson added that 
this treats all town and state maintained streets as the same, in regards to Political Signs. Mr. Eller noted that 
this proposal has been reviewed by the Planning and Zoning Board and they offer a unanimous 
recommendation on this revision of language. 
 
Next, Town Planner Eller covered the proposed code amendments for Conditional Zoning Districts. He 
mentioned that as far as the approval process goes, a vast majority of the language already exists, but has 
been cleaned up to flow better. Certain provisions were highlighted. The steps of the approval process starts 
in front of Town Council for initial consideration, then to the Planning and Zoning Board for review and 
comment, where a statement of reasonableness and recommendation will be given to Council. After this the 
developer will hold a public involvement meeting to speak with the public and staff prior to the public 
hearing. Lastly a public hearing is held by Town Council and Town Council is authorized to take action on 
the CZD after the public hearing. Mr. Eller then covered time limit language on CZD and indicated that 

4



 

 
Page 2 of 3  October 15, 2018  
  Town Council Special-Called Meeting Minutes 
 

what is proposed gets away from legislated time frames and allows Town Council in setting time limits 
based on the scope of construction. As for modifications, what staff is allowed to modify is limited to 
exclude anything that would affect the final plat of the property. Lastly, appeals of administrative decisions 
go to Zoning Board of Adjustment, however, staff is required to notify Town Council of any appeals so that 
the Town has the ability to appear and participate in the proceedings with Zoning Board of Adjustment. 
Town Attorney Jennifer Jackson mentioned that there were some typographical errors in subsection E 
within the Conditional Zoning District language that will need to be cleaned up. 
 
Lastly, Town Planner Eller covered the proposed code amendments on nonconformities and mentioned that 
the Town is obligated to provide protection for legal nonconformities. As it relates to nonconforming lots 
that have a dimensional variable less than 20%, staff can issue a zoning permit for a structure on property. If 
it is more than 20% nonconforming then they are required to go to Zoning Board of Adjustment to achieve a 
variance. Moving into nonconforming structures, when the Table of Uses was implemented it created some 
nonconformities, since prior to that a single family home could be built in any commercial or industrial 
district. This specifically allows for continued residential use within a commercial or industrial zoning 
district providing that the requirements for R-1 district are met.  As for nonconforming uses, it may be 
replaced by another nonconforming use, if it falls within the use definition as the original nonconforming 
use. If it doesn’t, then they are required to go in front of the Zoning Board of Adjustment to prove that that 
the change of use doesn’t increase the degree of nonconforming of the use. Mr. Eller next covered the 
discontinuance of a nonconforming uses and mentioned that the discontinuance language has basically 
stayed the same except that the amount of time has been decreased. Language has also been added to allow 
for signage for existing nonconforming uses.  
 
Town Planner James Eller stated that each text amendment has gone before the Planning and Zoning Board 
and each received a unanimous recommendation which were attached to the public hearing materials and 
received for consideration. In addition the public hearing was noticed in the Weaverville Tribune on 
October 3 and 10. 
 
No one from the public had any comments to offer. 
 
Councilman Nagle made the motion to close the public hearing; Councilwoman Sherrill seconded and all 
voted in favor of closing the public hearing. 

 
3. Public Hearing: Conditional Zoning District for Northridge Commons Townhouses 

 
Mayor Root opened the Public Hearing 
 
Town Planner James Eller stated that the public hearing was noticed in the Weaverville Tribune on October 
3 and 10. The issue before Town Council tonight is that the conditional zoning district that was passed for 
Northridge Commons Townhouses included language that suggested the applicant had a certain amount of 
time to take ownership of the property otherwise the ordinance would become void. The applicant 
experienced some difficulty with the private covenants and restrictions that were placed upon their property. 
This additional time wasn’t calculated up front and their deadline to acquire the property has come and 
gone. The language that is in front of Town Council is the exact copy of the ordinance that was passed, 
except for one exception that allows the applicant until April 16, 2019 to acquire the property. This date is 
also the date that the water allocation expires. Town Planner Eller noted that this has been reviewed and 

5



 

 
Page 3 of 3  October 15, 2018  
  Town Council Special-Called Meeting Minutes 
 

unanimously recommended by the Planning and Zoning Board, a copy of the recommendation was included 
in the public hearing materials and received by Town Council. 
 
No one from the public had any comments to offer. 

 
Councilman Nagle made the motion to close the public hearing and adjourn the special called meeting; 
Councilwoman Sherrill seconded and all voted in favor of closing the public hearing and adjourning the 
meeting at 6:45pm. 

 
 
 
__________________________________________ 
Derek K. Huninghake, Town Clerk 

6



 

 
Page 1 of 5  September 17, 2018  
  Town Council Meeting Minutes 
 

                       
                        MINUTES 

Town of Weaverville    Town Council Meeting 
State of North Carolina Monday, October 15, 2018 
 
The Town Council for the Town of Weaverville met for a its regular monthly meeting on Monday, October 15, 
2018, at 7:00 p.m. in Council Chambers within Weaverville Town Hall at 30 South Main Street, Weaverville, 
North Carolina. 
 
Council members present were: Mayor Al Root, Vice Mayor/Councilman Doug Jackson, Councilwoman Dottie 
Sherrill, Councilman Jeffrey McKenna, Councilman Andrew Nagle and Councilman Patrick Fitzsimmons.  
 
Staff present was: Town Manager Selena Coffey, Town Attorney Jennifer Jackson, Town Clerk Derek 
Huninghake, Police Chief Alan Wyatt, Fire Chief Ted Williams, Town Planner James Eller, Finance Officer 
Tonya Dozier, Public Works Director Dale Pennell and Water Treatment Supervisor Trent Duncan. 
 
1. Call to Order 

Mayor Al Root called the meeting to order at 7:00 p.m.  
 

2. Approval/Adjustments to the Agenda 
Town Manager Selena Coffey asked to add an Ordinance Declaring a Road Closure for the Weaverville 
Christmas Parade as Consent Agenda item F. 
Councilwoman Sherrill made a motion to approve the agenda with the aforementioned revision. 
Councilman Fitzsimmons seconded and all voted in favor of the motion. 

 
3. Approval of Minutes 

Vice Mayor/Councilman Jackson made the motion to approve the minutes from September 17, 2018 Special 
Called Meeting and September 17, 2018 Town Council Regular Meeting as presented. Councilman Nagle 
seconded the motion and all voted in favor on the approval of the minutes. 
 

4. Special Recognitions 
Mayor Root presented Leslie Osborne with a Certificate of Appreciation for her hard work and 
contributions on the Planning and Zoning Board. She has recently moved outside of Town limits making her 
ineligible for further service on the Planning and Zoning Board. She was also recognized for her 
contributions through service on the Friends of the Library, Weaverville Business Association and many 
other boards.  
 

5. General Public Comment 
Public comments were received as follows:  
Alan Sheppard, commented that Town Council should start allowing citizens to give input on agenda items 
during the meetings, like other places do.  He thinks getting the agenda in the middle of the prior week 

7



 

 
Page 2 of 5  September 17, 2018  
  Town Council Meeting Minutes 
 

before the meeting doesn’t allow for enough time to absorb the information. Mr. Sheppard also noted that 
the Town was performing at the best it has in a long time and thanked Town Manager Coffey for doing a 
wonderful job.     
 
Eileen Fleming, 440 Kyfields, thanked Town Council for getting the “Right on Red” sign taken down at the 
Weaverville Boulevard and Main Street intersection. 
 
Joanna Vanderkolk, 2 Roberts St, commented about some tree limbs hanging at Roberts Street and 
Hamburg Mountain Road. She is very concerned about someone getting hurt from not being able to see 
coming traffic and wanted Town Council to be aware of this situation.  
 

6. Consent Agenda 
Vice Mayor/Councilman Jackson moved for the approval of the Consent Agenda. Councilwoman Sherrill 
seconded the motion and all voted unanimously to approve all action requested in the consent agenda. 
 
A. Monthly Tax Report – Information Only 
B. Tax Releases and Refunds - Approved tax releases of the personal property of Garland Pennell at 23 

Wildwood Avenue valued at $2,200, so that $8.36 can be released from the 2018 levy and real property 
owned by the Weaverville United Methodist Church at 35 Church Street valued at $6,900, so that 
$26.22 can be released from the 2018 levy. 

C. Waterline Acceptance and Repair Guaranty: Maple Trace Phase II – Town Council accepted the 
waterline extension and related improvements into the Town’s water system subject to staff level 
approval by the Town Manager, Town Attorney, and Public Works Director, and set the repair guaranty 
amount at $6,000. 

D. Re-Appointment to Animal Control Appeals Board – Reappointed Tina Jenkins to the Animal 
Control Board for a three-year term beginning in November 2018 and extending to November 2021. 

E. Final Plat Approval: Bulls Bay, LLC (44 Central Ave) – Approved the final plat for Bull’s Bay, LLC, 
project at 44 Central Avenue, as presented, and have staff inform the developer that the Town will not 
be taking ownership or ongoing maintenance of the island created by the cul-de-sac shown on the final 
plat. 

F. Ordinance Declaring Road Closure for the Weaverville Christmas Parade – Approved Ordinance 
Declaring Road Closure for the Weaverville Christmas Parade on December 1, 2018 from 1 to 3 pm. 
 

7. Town Manager’s Report 
Town Manager Selena Coffey presented her Manager’s report to Council including the Town has purchased 
an Automatic Emergency Defibrillator(AED) to be installed at the Town Hall, and staff will be trained on 
the use of that equipment and in CPR in the coming months; the Residents Patriotic Activities Committee 
has developed the program for this year’s Veterans’ Day Observance , which will be on Monday, November 
12 at 11 am; she attended the NCGFOA conference in Winston Salem on October 11-12 and provided a 
brief report that FLSA and staff development were covered in depth. Also, new regulations will be going 
into effect in 2020 making it more difficult for auditors to bid on the Towns yearly audit; In accordance with 
the Town’s Code of Ordinances, Article V, Division III, she has authorized the disposition of 13 replaced 
service handguns to Burnette’s Rod & Gun Shop, as they are a federal firearms dealer. She estimates the 
total value of these 13 handguns at $3,380 (per an estimate provided by the original vendor), well below the 
$5,000 value established within the Town’s Code for the Manager’s approval for disposition. Officers will 
be able to purchase their firearms from Burnette’s; the “No Turn on Red” signage at intersection Main street 

8



 

 
Page 3 of 5  September 17, 2018  
  Town Council Meeting Minutes 
 

and Weaver Boulevard has been taken down by NCDOT; and Buncombe County has executed the 
Greenways MOU for planning and design of the greenway project.   
 

8. Discussion and Action Items 
A. Adoption of Code Amendments: Nonconformities, Conditional Zoning Districts, and Political 

Signage 
Mayor Root had some questions about the proposed code amendments for the Conditional Zoning Districts. 
He wondered if (1) the language under Conditions section C might be placing limitations on Town Council, 
(2) who decides the Guarantee of Conditions under section I, (3) is there a requirement in the Modifications 
section M that Council be informed of the decision made, and (4) lastly under section O for the final plat 
approval process, is there a reason that the language shows Town Council must do, instead of may do? 
 
Town Planner James Eller commented that language under the conditions sections shows that statutorily 
Town Council is obligated to keep their conditions in perspective, so that it is site specific and in same 
scope as the development. Town Attorney Jennifer Jackson added that some governing boards were asking 
for improvements unrelated to a particular development, so the statutes have tightened up the conditions 
making them tailored to the specific scope in development. Town Attorney Jackson also noted that the 
developer gets to choose which option type of guarantee that they offer under the Guarantee of Conditions 
and those options are statutorily prescribed. 
 
Town Planner James Eller mentioned that there wasn’t a requirement in the modifications section to inform 
Council of the decision made, but one could be included. As for the final plat approval process, Town 
Planner Eller noted that there was a lot of debate on this matter and his concern with the approval process 
being open-ended is that a tremendous amount of infrastructure and site work prep could be completed, and 
Council could end the project at its own will. Town Attorney Jennifer Jackson added that Town Council’s 
big input is at the beginning in holding multiple meetings and a public hearing, then arriving at an ordinance 
that sets forth all the requirements of the developer. The development goes forward and at the end there will 
be a final plat showing all the infrastructure and details. So if the developer has complied with everything in 
the ordinance, it is unfair to deny the final plat. She also, mentioned that there were some typos that need to 
be fixed from the working document translation to the ordinance.  
 
Mayor Root noted that a notification procedure be added on the decisions being made by the Zoning 
Administrator as well.  

Vice Mayor/Councilman Jackson made a motion to approve the Ordinance with the amendment discussed in 
subparagraph M within the Conditional Zoning District section adding notice to Town Council for any 
minor modifications, either approved or denied by the Zoning Administrator, and fixing any typos. 
Councilman Fitzsimmons seconded the motion. The motion passed by a unanimous vote of Council. Motion 
carries 5-0 

 
B. Proposed Conditional Zoning District – Northridge Commons Townhouses 
Mayor Root mentioned that the public hearing was held earlier and the only change was to extend the 
ownership transfer date to April 16, 2019, as explained to Council.  
 
Councilman McKenna made a motion to adopt the Ordinance Establishing a Conditional Zoning District 
Designated as CZD-3 – Northridge Commons Townhouses as presented . Councilman Nagle seconded the 
motion. The motion passed by a unanimous vote of Council. Motion carries 5-0 
 

9



 

 
Page 4 of 5  September 17, 2018  
  Town Council Meeting Minutes 
 

C. Comprehensive Land Use Plan Staff Update 
Town Planner James Eller commented that staff has begun assembling information that will be incorporated 
into the Comprehensive Land Use Plan. All the demographic work has been completed and after Town 
Councils workshop last week related to the strategic plan, there will be some direction as it relates to 
annexation and water allocations, as well as development and review process.  Moving forward into 
November and December, Town Council’s direction will allow staff the knowledge it needs to ensure that 
the product produced in the Comprehensive Land Use Plan fulfills the wishes of Town Council.  
 
D. Personnel Policy Amendments: Article III Pay Plan and Article VIII Benefits 
Town Attorney Jennifer Jackson informed Town Council that in front of them tonight for their consideration 
and possible approval is the revised Article III – Pay Plan that was presented in May with the one exception 
being that the longevity pay section has been deleted. The Article VIII – Benefits Policy language was 
updated and staff added paragraphs on the Employees Assistance Network, Deferred Compensation, 401K 
and 457 plans to reflect what the Town offers. Town Attorney Jackson did note that under the Group Health 
coverage section a change is being proposed to have part time employees share the cost of coverage with the 
Town. Also, workers compensation is provided by the Town, but the policy wasn’t very clear on the 
procedure to follow when needed so it was updated.  Staff added a modified light duty part to the policy 
from a recommendation made by the NC League of Municipalities, stating that the Town doesn’t have to 
create light duty work for someone out on workers comp, but if it is available they must allow it. She did 
ask that if Town Council was considering taking action on this issue that they make the effective date 
January 1, 2019.  
 
Vice Mayor/Councilman Jackson made a motion to approve Article’s III and VIII as presented with an 
effective date of January 1, 2019. Councilman Nagle seconded the motion. The motion passed by a 
unanimous vote of Council. Motion carries 5-0 
 
E. Community Center Projects: Selection of Architect 
Public Works Director Dale Pennell mentioned that the Town Manager, Selection Committee and himself 
have been working really hard to complete the qualification-based selection process for choosing an 
architect for the new Community Center project.  There were five architectural firms interested that 
submitted applications. All the firms were ranked and the top three architectural firms were interviewed. 
After careful consideration, Town Manager Selena Coffey seeks consensus from Town Council on the 
selection of Legerton Architecture.  
 
Consensus was given by Town Council for the selection of Legerton Architecture. 
 
F. July4/ Fireworks Discussion 
Town Manager Selena Coffey informed Town Council that staff had some new financial information and 
specific fireworks staging locations for the July 4 display.  The four potential staging locations that were 
reviewed were the Town’s firing range, the Saddle Dam at Lake Louise, the cell tower property and AB 
Emblem. Pyrotecnico, the Town’s firework vendors, did indicate that if the fireworks are closer than 500 
feet to a dwelling structure than the Town will have to get secondary insurance for liability and all dwelling 
structures will have to be vacated.  Also, any fireworks that are beyond 1500 feet will not provide for a good 
show because of the lack of visibility. As for the finances, the total estimated cost to hold the 2019 July 4th 

10



 

 
Page 5 of 5  September 17, 2018  
  Town Council Meeting Minutes 
 

event would be around $58,600, plus additional costs for secondary liability insurance.  The staging 
locations documents and financial information are attached. 
 
Council held discussion on whether the Town should still hold the 4th of July event, even if there weren’t 
fireworks and if holding the event downtown would be a better choice than at Lake Louise.  
 
Joanna Vanderkolk mentioned to Town Council that there could be a laser light show with sounds and 
effects for the kids, if there were no fireworks. 
 
Laura Ayers mentioned that maybe there was a spot between the public works department building and the 
firing range that was more than 500 feet away and still allows for good visibility. If so, we could build a 
platform to have the fireworks launched off there. 
 
Town Council asked Town Manager Selena Coffey to look into how much secondary insurance would cost, 
other launching options for fireworks and the cost to hold the 4th of July event downtown with a laser light 
show. 
 
G. Planning Department Quarterly Reports 
Town Planner James Eller presented the Planning Departments Third Quarter Report and noted that 30 
Zoning Permits and 5 Sign Permits have been issued during this period, with one of the permits covering 
176 dwelling units.   
 
H. Finance Department Quarterly Reports 
Finance Officer Tonya Dozier updated Town Council on the FY 2018 audit and indicated that the final draft 
should be received within a few days. It will then be sent to the Local Government Commission for 
approval and maybe finally present to Council next month. She presented the Revenue and Expenditure 
Statement by Departments for the first quarter of FY2019.  
 
 

9. Adjournment 
Vice Mayor/Councilman Jackson made the motion to adjourn; Councilwoman Sherrill seconded and all 
voted to adjourn the Council’s meeting at 8:32 p.m. 

 

__________________________________________ 
Derek K. Huninghake, Town Clerk 

11



TOWN OF WEAVERVILLE 
TOWN COUNCIL AGENDA ITEM 

 

MEETING DATE:  November 19, 2018   

SUBJECT: Monthly Tax Report 

PRESENTER:  Tax Collector 

ATTACHMENTS: Monthly Tax Report 
  
 
DESCRIPTION/SUMMARY OF REQUEST:  

The Town Tax Collector provides the following monthly tax report as of      
November 13, 2018. This report is provided for information only.  

No action is requested or required. 

 

 

 

  

12



AS OF 11/13/2018
Real Property: 750,820,030        
Real Property Discoveries: -                         

Total Real Property:  750,820,030        
Personal: 54,787,228           
Personal Discoveries: -                         

Total Personal: 54,787,228           
Public Utilities: 4,952,725             
Exemption: (10,663,470)         
Releases: (51,205)                 
Total Tax Value 799,845,308        

Tax Levy @.38 cents per $100
Real Property: 2,853,116             
Personal Property: 208,191                
Public Utilities: 18,820                  
Less Under $5 Adjustment -                         
Total Public Utilities: 18,820                  
Exemption: (40,521)                 
Releases: (195)                       
Total Levy (Total Billed) 3,039,412             

Total Current Year Collections 1,231,834.42
% Collected 40.53%

Total Left to be Collected: 1,807,578             

Prior Years Paid 11

Town of Weaverville
MONTHLY TAX REPORT

FY 2018-19

13



TOWN OF WEAVERVILLE 
TOWN COUNCIL AGENDA ITEM 

 

MEETING DATE:  November 19, 2018   

SUBJECT: Tax Releases 

PRESENTER:   Tax Collector 

ATTACHMENTS: None 
 
  
DESCRIPTION/SUMMARY OF REQUEST:  

Town Council is asked to approve a tax release for the 2018 tax bill on real property owned 
by Amit Dorf at 122 Dorothy Lillie Lane bearing a Buncombe County Parcel Identification 
Number of 9742-99-4566. The requested release is for $551,000 in value and $2,093.80 
from the 2018 tax levy. This release request is due to this real property being located 
outside of the Town’s jurisdiction.  

 

TOWN COUNCIL ACTION: 

Town Council is requested to approved the above-described release. This action could be in 
the form of the following motion:  

I move to approve the release of the real property of Amit Dorf bearing Buncombe 
County PIN 9742-99-4566, valued at $551,000, so that $2093.80 can be released from 
the 2018 levy. 

14



TOWN OF WEAVERVILLE 
TOWN COUNCIL AGENDA ITEM 

 

MEETING DATE:  November 19, 2018   

SUBJECT: Acceptance of Property Donation – Lake Louise/Mayfair 
Partners, LLC 

PRESENTER:   Town Attorney 

ATTACHMENTS: Tax Map 
 Old Subdivision Map 
 Gift Deed 
  
DESCRIPTION/SUMMARY OF REQUEST:  

As part of the development approval process for its project at 97 Lakeshore Drive, Mayfair 
Partners, LLC, agreed to donate to the Town certain lots that are adjacent to the Town’s 
Lake Louise park property near the Town’s historic water wheel. Maps are attached 
showing the property as is a copy of the deed that was executed by Mayfair Partners, LLC, 
and delivered to the Town.  

The Town Attorney is of the opinion that marketable title for the property is conveyed to 
the Town with the attached gift deed. 

As an exercise of the Town’s corporate powers, Town Council is authorized to accept 
donations of real property. Should the Town wish to accept this real property donation 
Town Council must take formal action to accept the property.  

  

TOWN COUNCIL ACTION REQUESTED: 

If the Town wishes to accept the donation of the real property described in the attached 
deed and shown on the attached maps Town Council must accept the property. The 
following motion could be used for that purpose: 

I make a motion that we accept and receive the donation of the real property 
described in the attached gift deed for use in conjunction with the Lake Louise Park.  

 

15



11/14/2018 _ags_a7ccc62723844de8a451436d5008b8d6.jpg (800×1100)

https://gis.buncombecounty.org/arcgis/rest/directories/arcgisoutput/Utilities/PrintingTools_GPServer/_ags_a7ccc62723844de8a451436d5008b8d6.jpg 1/1

W
AT

ER
 

W
H

EE
L

D
O

N
AT

ED
PA

R
C

EL
`

C
R

EE
KS

ID
E

W
AT

ER
 P

O
IN

TE

PU
BL

IC
  W

O
R

KS

LA
KE

 L
O

U
IS

E

R
EE

M
S

C
R

EE
K

FU
TU

R
E

C
O

M
M

U
N

IT
Y 

C
EN

TE
R

16



17



18



19



TOWN OF WEAVERVILLE 
TOWN COUNCIL AGENDA ITEM 

 

MEETING DATE:  November 19, 2018  

SUBJECT: Comprehensive Land Use Plan Project – Staff Update  

PRESENTER:  Planning Director/Town Attorney 

ATTACHMENTS: Project Overview 
  
 
DESCRIPTION/SUMMARY OF REQUEST:  

Staff wishes to express appreciation to the Mayor and Town Council for setting aside 
time on 13 November 2018 to talk about some of the important issues that will 
guide the development of the Comprehensive Land Use Plan Project.  

The attached Project Overview shows the road map that staff will be using for the 
Project. Monthly updates will continue to be provided to the Mayor and Town 
Council. The Planning and Zoning Board has expressed interest and a willingness to 
provide assistance on this Project so they will be updated monthly as well.  

 

 

COUNCIL ACTION REQUESTED: 

No action requested at tonight’s meeting. 

20



TO
W

N
 O

F 
W

EA
VE

RV
IL

LE
 

CO
M

PR
EH

EN
SI

VE
 L

AN
D 

U
SE

 P
LA

N
 P

RO
JE

CT
 

P
R

O
JE

C
T

 O
V

E
R

V
IE

W
 

 

P
H

A
S

E
 

D
E

S
C

R
IP

T
IO

N
 

S
E

P
 

O
C

T
 

N
O

V
 

D
E

C
 

JA
N

 
FE

B
 

M
A

R
 

A
P

R
 

M
A

Y
 

JU
N

 

 
La

un
ch

 –
 A

ut
ho

riz
at

io
n 

to
 P

ro
ce

ed
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

P
ha

se
 I

 
 

In
fo

rm
at

io
n/

Da
ta

 G
at

he
rin

g 
an

d 
An

al
ys

is
   

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

G
ov

er
ni

ng
 B

od
y 

Po
lic

y 
Di

sc
us

si
on

s 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 

P
ha

se
 I

I 
Pr

el
im

in
ar

y 
Dr

af
t o

f P
la

n 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
P

ha
se

 I
II

 
Co

m
m

un
ity

 R
ev

ie
w

 a
nd

 In
pu

t 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
P

ha
se

 I
V

 
Pl

an
ni

ng
 B

oa
rd

 R
ev

ie
w

 a
nd

 In
pu

t 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
G

ov
er

ni
ng

 B
oa

rd
 R

ev
ie

w
 a

nd
 In

pu
t 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

Jo
in

t M
ee

tin
gs

 w
ith

 P
la

nn
in

g 
Bo

ar
d 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

P
ha

se
 V

 
Fi

na
l D

ra
ft

 o
f P

la
n 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

G
ov

er
ni

ng
 B

od
y 

Re
vi

ew
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

Ad
op

tio
n 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 PR
O

JE
CT

 S
TA

FF
: 

Ja
m

es
 E

lle
r, 

Pl
an

ni
ng

 D
ire

ct
or

 
 

 
 

Je
nn

ife
r J

ac
ks

on
, T

ow
n 

At
to

rn
ey

  
 PL

AN
 D

O
CU

M
EN

TS
 C

O
N

SU
LT

ED
:  

W
ea

ve
rv

ill
e 

St
ra

te
gi

c 
Pl

an
 (2

01
4-

20
17

), 
Dr

af
t W

ea
ve

rv
ill

e 
St

ra
te

gi
c 

Pl
an

 (2
01

8+
),W

ea
ve

rv
ill

e 
Co

m
pr

eh
en

siv
e 

La
nd

 U
se

 P
la

n 
(2

01
2)

, W
ea

ve
rv

ill
e 

Pa
rk

s a
nd

 R
ec

re
at

io
n 

M
as

te
r P

la
n 

(2
01

8)
, R

ee
m

s 
Cr

ee
k 

Gr
ee

nw
ay

 F
ea

sib
ili

ty
 S

tu
dy

 (2
01

4)
, W

ea
ve

rv
ill

e 
W

at
er

 S
ys

te
m

 P
la

ns
, M

et
ro

po
lit

an
 S

ew
er

ag
e 

Di
st

ric
t P

la
ns

, N
C 

St
at

ew
id

e 
Tr

an
sp

or
ta

tio
n 

Im
pr

ov
em

en
t P

la
n 

(2
01

8-
20

27
) 

 RE
SO

U
RC

E 
AG

EN
CI

ES
: 

U
S 

Ce
ns

us
 B

ur
ea

u,
 S

ta
te

 o
f N

or
th

 C
ar

ol
in

a,
 N

CD
O

T 
Di

vi
sio

n 
13

, B
un

co
m

be
 C

ou
nt

y,
 T

ow
n 

of
 W

ea
ve

rv
ill

e,
 L

an
d 

of
 S

ky
 

Re
gi

on
al

 C
ou

nc
il,

 M
et

ro
po

lit
an

 S
ew

er
ag

e 
Di

st
ric

t o
f B

un
co

m
be

 C
ou

nt
y,

 A
sh

ev
ill

e 
Re

de
fin

es
 T

ra
ns

it,
 M

ou
nt

ai
n 

M
ob

ili
ty

, C
on

ne
ct

 B
un

co
m

be
 

 PL
AN

N
IN

G
 &

 Z
O

N
IN

G
 B

O
AR

D:
 

Do
ug

 T
he

ro
ux

, G
ar

y 
Bu

rg
e,

 C
at

he
rin

e 
Co

rd
el

l, 
Pe

te
r S

ta
nz

, S
te

ve
 W

ar
re

n,
 Jo

hn
 C

ha
se

  
(R

EV
IE

W
IN

G 
BO

AR
D)

  
 

 AN
TI

CI
PA

TE
D 

BU
DG

ET
:  

< 
$3

,0
00

 

21



TOWN OF WEAVERVILLE 
TOWN COUNCIL AGENDA ITEM 

 

MEETING DATE:  November 19, 2018  

SUBJECT: Approval of Architect’s Agreement for the Lake Louise 
Community Center Project  

PRESENTER:  Town Manager 

ATTACHMENTS: Architect’s Agreement with Attachments 
  
DESCRIPTION/SUMMARY OF REQUEST:  

At its meeting on 15 October 2018, Town Council’s selected Legerton Architects, P.A. 
for the architect on the Lake Louise Community Center Project. Staff has worked 
with Legerton in negotiating a professional services agreement and recommends 
the attached agreement for Town Council’s consideration and approval.  

This agreement is based on the standard AIA agreement between architect and 
owner. It has been reviewed by the Town Manager, Town Attorney and Public 
Works Director and all believe it is a fair and just agreement that will provide for the 
architectural services necessary on the Community Center Project.   

During the agreement review process the project budget was also reviewed, 
updated and incorporated into the agreement as Exhibit C. You will note that the 
overall cost noted on the budget is within $5,000 of the preliminary budget. The 
architect’s fees on the project are noted as 8% of the cost of work which is the 
industry standard. The timeline was also solidified with a projected substantial 
completion date of end of August 2020. 

 

COUNCIL ACTION REQUESTED: 

The Town Manager recommends approval of the agreement. The following motion 
can be used for that purpose: 

I make a motion to approve the attached agreement for architectural services 
with Legerton Architects, P.A., for the Lake Louise Community Center Project 
and to authorize the Town Manager to execute the agreement and any other 
documents necessary to engage Legerton Architects, P.A., as the architects on 
this project. 

22



23



24



25



26



27



28



29



30



31



32



33



34



35



36



37



38



39



40



41



42



43



44



45



46



47



48



49



50



51



52



53



54



55



56



57



Ex
hi

bi
t A

: S
ch

em
at

ic
 D

es
ig

n 
Fl

oo
r P

la
n

W
ea

ve
rv

ill
e 

C
om

m
un

ity
 C

en
te

r
M

ay
 2

7,
 2

01
8

58



59



Exhibit C: Town of Weaverville Community Center 
Total Budget and "Cost of Work"
11/07/2018 (revision of 6/4/2018)

Item No. Construction Item Description Quantity Unit Unit Cost Total

1
Clearing and grubbing of 

wooded and grassed areas 0.9 Acres (AC) $7,000 $6,300

2
Pavement demolition and 

disposal 2300 Square Yards (SY) $3 $6,900

3

Install and maintain erosion 
control measures (silt fencing, 

mud mat, sediment basins,  
inlet protection, etc.) 1 LS $15,000 $15,000

4

Grading of site to add 
additional parking spaces, 

move north slope, fill in area 
below drive 4,200 Cubic Yards (CY) $20 $84,000

5

Storm water piping (10 catch 
basins, 400 LF of 18" and 24" 
aluminized pipe, 200 LF of 8" 

roof leaders, 1 endwall) 1 LS $49,500 $49,500

6

Storm water treatment, 
including pond with forebay 

and outlet structure, aqueous 
plantings, fencing, gate, access 

road 1 LS $27,000 $27,000

7

Utility extensions to building, 
including water, sewer, power, 

gas, phone, IT 6 Each (EA) $3,000 $18,000

8
Concrete curb & gutter, 

including ABC stone 650 LF $20 $13,000

9

Concrete sidewalk withinsite 
and 160 LF along Lake Louise 

Drive including ABC stone 180 SY $35 $6,300
10 ABC stone under pavement 1,400 Ton (TN) $25 $35,000
11 Asphalt paving 340 TN $125 $42,500
12 Pavement striping 1 LS $2,500 $2,500

13
Landscaping of islands and 

around building 1 LS $20,000 $20,000
14 Grassing of disturbed areas 1 LS $4,000 $4,000
15 Decorative entry patio area 1 LS $12,000 $12,000

16
Restoration of existing rock 

patio and steps to lake 1 LS $14,000 $14,000

60



17 Site Lighting 1 LS $5,000 $5,000

18 Entry signage and landscaping 1 LS $4,000 $4,000

19
Commercial Kitchen 

Appliances and Fixtures 1 LS $50,000 $50,000
20 IT system for WiFi 1 LS $20,000 $20,000

21
Security System with cameras 

and card readers for doors 1 LS $39,000 $39,000

22
Community Room Dividing 

Curtain 1 LS $16,000 $16,000
23 Office and Porch Furniture 1 LS $20,000 $20,000
24 Museum Furniture 1 LS $25,000 $25,000

25
Museum Display Cases for 

Lobby Area 1 LS $15,000 $15,000

26
Folding tables and chairs with 

rolling storage racks 1 LS $21,000 $21,000

27
Architect's Cost Opinion 
(HIGH Building option) 1 LS $1,610,020 $1,610,020

"COST OF THE WORK" $2,181,020

"OWNER'S ITEMS"
A Soil Borings (12) $6,000

B
Landscaping Architect Fee 
based on 2% of items 1-18 $7,300

C
Civil Engineering Fee based on 

6% of items 1-18 $21,900

D
Permit Fees (erosion, storm 

water, bond) $9,600

E
Architectural Fees based on 
8% of "Cost of the Work" $174,482

F
Architectural's Rembursible 

Expense (estimate) $5,000

G

10% Contingency on items 1-
26 (note: Item 27 from 

Architect already contains 10% 
contingency) $57,100

"OWNER'S ITEMS" $281,382

TOTAL BUDGET INCLUDING 
"COST OF THE WORK" AND 

"OWNER'S ITEMS" $2,462,402
VS

6/4/18 original estimate $2,457,120

61



Exhibit D: Hourly Rates of the Architect and the Architect’s Consultants  
November 12, 2018 
Page 1 of 2 
 

 

 

Legerton Architecture, P.A. 
Principal Architect: ………………………………………. $ 140.00/hr.      
Project Manager: …………………………………………. $ 120.00/hr. 
Project Architect: ………………………………………… $ 110.00/hr. 
Architectural Designer I: …………………………………. $   95.00/hr. 
Architectural Designer II: ………………………………... $   85.00/hr. 
Architectural Designer III: ………………………………. $   75.00/hr. 
Administrative: …………………………………………. $   45.00/hr. 

Medlock & Associates Engineering, P.A. (Structural Engineering)   
Senior Engineer: …………………………………………. $ 165.00/hr. 
Project Engineer: …………………………………………. $ 125.00/hr. 
Revit Drafting/Design I: …………………………………. $ 125.00/hr. 
Engineer: …………………………………………………. $ 100.00/hr. 
Revit Drafting/Design II: …………………………………. $ 100.00/hr. 
Project Manager: …………………………………………. $ 100.00/hr. 
Professional Associate: ………………………………........ $   85.00/hr. 
CADD/Field Technician: …………………………………. $   75.00/hr. 
Technician II: ……………………………………………… $   75.00/hr. 
Administrative: …………………………………………… $   45.00/hr. 
 
Sud Associates, P.A. (Mechanical-Electrical-Plumbing & Fire Protection) 
Owner/Partner …………………………………………… $ 182.00/hr. 
Principal Engineer ………………………………………… $ 168.00/hr. 
Registered Engineers ……………………………………… $ 149.00/hr. 
Project Managers/Senior Designers ………………………. $ 121.00/hr. 
Designers ………………………………………………….. $ 104.00/hr. 
Technicians/Drafting ……………………………………… $   86.00/hr. 
Administrative …………………………………………….  $   66.00/hr. 
Secretarial …………………………………………………. $   55.00/hr. 
 
Civil Design Concepts, P.A. (Civil Engineers)  
Principal Engineer: ……………………………………….. $ 140.00/hr. 
Senior Project Engineer: ………………………………….. $ 125.00/hr. 
Associate Project Engineer………………………………... $ 100.00/hr. 
Construction Administrator……………………………….. $ 100.00/hr. 
Senior Engineering Technician: ………………………….. $   95.00/hr. 
Contract Administrator: …………………………………... $   90.00/hr. 
Civil Engineer Technician: ……………………………….. $   80.00/hr. 
CAD Technician: …………………………………………. $   70.00/hr. 
Construction Inspector: …………………………………… $   60.00/hr. 
Office Administrator: …………………………………….. $   40.00/hr. 

62



Exhibit D: Hourly Rates of the Architect and the Architect’s Consultants  
November 12, 2018 
Page 2 of 2 
 

 

 

Sitework Studios, PLLC (Landscape Architect) 
Principal Landscape Architect: ……………………………  $ 135.00/hr. 
Senior Associate: ………………………………………….  $ 115.00/hr. 
Senior Landscape Architect: ……………………………...   $ 100.00/hr. 
Staff Landscape Architect: ………………………………… $   85.00/hr. 
Land Planner: …………………………………………..….  $   70.00/hr. 
Administrative: ……………………………………………  $    40.00/hr. 

Aiken Cost Consultants, Inc. (Construction Cost Estimating Consultant) 
Estimator: ……………………………………………........   $   80.00/hr. 
 

 

63



Exhibit E: Aiken Cost Consultants’ letter to Legerton Architecture dated November 12, 2018 
 

 
  

 
Aiken Cost Consultants, Inc. 
19 W. Stone Avenue 
Greenville, SC  29609 
www.AikenCost.com 
Phone (864) 232-9342 Fax 233-2573  
 
November 12, 2018  
  
Mr. Mitchel Sorin, AIA, LEED AP 
Project Manager 
Legerton Architecture, P.A. 
21 North Liberty Street 
Asheville, NC 28801 
 
Subject: Design Development Phase Cost Estimating Services for 

Community Center 
Weaverville, NC 

 
Dear Mr. Sorin, 
 
Thank you for this opportunity to provide a proposal for Design Development Phase 
cost estimating services for the new Weaverville Community Center.  With your 
approval, we will accomplish our estimates in the ACC Progressive system.  ACC 
Progressive follows a logical building systems work breakdown structure format, 
includes all mark-ups, and is easy to read and understand by both technical and non-
technical users.  It was developed specifically to simplify review and analysis of building 
and site work systems for commercial and institutional projects. 
 
Based on the drawings, outline specifications and other information provided by the 
Legerton Architecture design team, ACC will prepare a detailed estimate that breaks the 
building and site work down into specific assemblies and equipment.  This estimate can 
be used to analyze the cost of each component of the work within each system, to 
develop some design alternates for consideration, and to value engineer the project if 
necessary.  Pricing will be specifically for the Weaverville/Asheville area and current 
bidding climate.  For maximum accuracy ACC estimators will contact local vendors for 
budget quotations on the most expensive or unique portions of the project. 
 
Our total fee for this estimate will be Two Thousand Five Hundred Sixty dollars 
($2,560.00). As your cost estimator Aiken Cost Consultants will also be available to the 
design team for comparative cost analyses, and other miscellaneous cost consultations 
at a rate of $80/hr.  Charges for meetings outside of our office (if required) will be on a 
Time and Expense basis, and will be subject to your prior approval.   
  

64

http://www.aikencost.com/


We feel that the city of Weaverville and the Legerton Architecture design team will both 
benefit by having Aiken Cost Consultants involved in the project.  However, because we 
have no control over contracting methods, General or Subcontractor overhead and 
profit percentages, bidding climates, schedules, continuing design modifications or 
addenda, etc., we cannot guarantee that the bids received will be within a certain range 
of our estimates.  Aiken Cost Consultants estimates are intended to be used as a 
professional opinion of the probable cost of construction, based on our understanding of 
the design at the time the estimate was prepared. Aiken Cost Consultants limits our 
liability for any and all claims, losses or damages to the total fees paid to us for our 
services rendered on this project. 
 
Thank you again for this opportunity.  Please let us know if this proposal is acceptable, 
by signing it and returning a copy for our file.  We will need approximately two weeks for 
our work at this phase.  
 
 
Sincerely, Proposal Accepted, 
 
Aiken Cost Consultants, Inc.    Legerton Architecture, PA 

                           
Bradley H. Aiken, CPE     Mitchel Sorin, AIA, LEED AP 
 
 
 
 
        Date: 
 
 
 
 
LEG.02.prop.18 

65



 

Town of Weaverville, North Carolina 

 

Town Manager’s Report 

Selena D. Coffey, MPA, ICMA-CM 

 

    

 

November 2018 

   

A. Recruitment of Police Chief: As you’re aware, Chief Wyatt will be retiring at 

calendar year end. I have initiated the recruitment process, having posted the position 

with the NC League of Municipalities, the NC city-county managers listserv, 

Indeed.com, local newspapers, Town’s website, etc. As of Thursday, I have received 14 

applications. I will be providing additional information during the meeting. 

 

B. Parking at Churches: Public Works has now completed the yellow striping at the 

Presbyterian and Methodist Churches.  They also created a mulch path from the 

Methodist Parking lot to the rear alley serving Dr. Bollinger’s dentist office and the 

Creperie.  In his last conversation with these churches, they told our Public Works 

Director that they did not want any signage. 

 

C. Employee CPR Training & Certification:  As reported in last month’s Manager’s 

report, we have had 31 employees now trained and certified in CPR from 

Administration, Public Works, Water Services and Police. Obviously, our Fire 

Department has had this training well before now. I wish to thank our employees who 

voluntarily took this training.  

 

D. Volunteer Appreciation Dinner: To date, we have 40 registrants for our Volunteer 

Appreciation Dinner, which will be held on Wednesday, November 28 at Town Hall in 

the Community Room. If you have not yet registered, please respond to the email that 

you received 2 weeks ago or let me know if you and a guest are attending and I will 

register you for the dinner. 

 

E. Christmas Parade: The Town’s Christmas Parade is Saturday, December 1 at 1pm. I 

will be getting Town Council’s candy for you to throw out during the parade. 

 

F. Employee Christmas Dinner:  The Employee Christmas Dinner is scheduled for 

Monday, December 3 at 6pm. Please make sure to let staff know if you will be in 

attendance for the dinner. 

 

I would like to extend my gratitude during this season of Thanksgiving, for the opportunity to 

serve the Town, its citizens and visitors and the Mayor and Town Council. I am thankful for a 

wonderful team! 

66



TOWN OF WEAVERVILLE 
TOWN COUNCIL AGENDA ITEM 

 

MEETING DATE:  November 19, 2018   

SUBJECT: FY 2017-2018 Audit Presentation 

PRESENTER:   Finance Officer/Travis Keever 

ATTACHMENTS: NC Financial Condition Analysis 
Gould Killian’s PowerPoint Slides (Audit Summary) 
 

  
 
DESCRIPTION/SUMMARY OF REQUEST:  

The annual audit for the Town Fiscal Year 2017-2018 has been completed.  

Tonya Dozier will be at tonight’s meeting to provide an overview of the Town’s finances 
and to introduce Travis Keever who was Gould Killian’s principal in charge of the Town’s 
audit.  

Mr. Keever will present his findings and be available to answer questions that Town 
Council may have concerning the FY 2017-2018 audit. 

 

 

 

  

67



Service obligation measures whether or not a 
government's annual revenues were sufficient to pay for 
annual operations. The operations ratio is calculated as 
total revenues divided by total expenditures (plus 
transfers to debt service fund).

Dependency measures the extent to which a government 
relies on other governments for resources. The 
intergovernmental ratio is calculated as total 
intergovernmental revenue divided by total revenue. 

North Carolina Financial Condition Analysis

Resource Flow

Resource Stock

Financing obligation addresses service flexibility or the 
amount of expenditures committed to annual debt 
service. The debt service ratio is calculated as debt 
service divided by total expenditures (plus transfers to 
debt service fund).

Liquidity measures a government's ability to meet its 
short-term obligations. The quick ratio is calculated as 
cash & investments divided by current liabilities.

Solvency measures a government's ability to meet long-
term obligations. Fund balance as a percentage of 
expenditures is calculated as available fund balance 
divided by expenditures plus transfers out.

Leverage measures the extent to which a government 
relies on tax-supported debt. The ratio of debt as a 
percentage of assessed value is calculated as tax-
supported, long-term debt divided by assessed value.
 

Service Obligation
Operations ratio

Dependency
Intergovernmental ratio

Financing Obligation
Debt service ratio

Liquidity
Quick ratio

Solvency
Fund balance available as 
percentage of expenditures

Leverage
Debt as percentage of 
assessed value

Key: WEAVERVILLE Benchmark

General Fund

Benchmark peers selected:
BLACK MOUNTAIN, BILTMORE FOREST, 
CANTON, FRANKLIN, WILKESBORO

Report Generation: 11/13/2018 4:57:17 PM

____

68



Interperiod equity measures whether or not a local 
government lived within its financial means. The total 
margin ratio - total financial resources divided by total 
financial obligations - is used to analyze this dimension of 
resource flow. 

Financial performance shows how much a government's 
financial position improved or deteriorated as a result of 
resource flow. The percent change in net position is 
calculated as the change in net position divided by net 
position, beginning.

Self-sufficiency addresses the extent to which charges 
for services covered total expenses. The charge-to-
expense ratio is calculated as charges for services 
divided by total expenses.

North Carolina Financial Condition Analysis

Resource Flow

Resource Stock

Financing obligation looks at service flexibility by 
determining the amount of total expenses committed to 
annual debt service. The debt service ratio is calculated 
as annual debt service divided by total expenses.

Liquidity measures a government's ability to meet its 
short-term obligations. The quick ratio—cash & 
investments divided by current liabilities—is used to 
analyze this dimension of resource stock.

Solvency measures a government's ability to meet long-
term obligations. The net position ratio is calculated as 
unrestricted net position divided by total liabilities.

Leverage measures the extent to which total assets are 
financed with long-term debt. The debt-to-assets ratio is 
calculated as long-term debt divided by total assets.  
 

Capital is the condition of capital assets as defined by 
their remaining useful life. The capital assets condition 
ratio is calculated as accumulated depreciation divided 
by capital assets being depreciated. This result is then 
subtracted from one. 

Interperiod Equity
Total margin ratio

Financial Performance
Percent change in net 
position

Self-Sufficiency
Charge-to-expense ratio

Financing Obligation
Debt service ratio

Liquidity
Quick ratio

Solvency
Net position ratio

Leverage
Debt-to-assets ratio

Capital
Capital-assets-condition ratio

Key: WEAVERVILLE Benchmark

Water and Sewer Fund

Benchmark peers selected:

BLACK MOUNTAIN, BILTMORE FOREST, 
CANTON, FRANKLIN, WILKESBORO

Report Generation: 11/13/2018 4:59:56 PM

____

69



TO
W
N
O
F
W

EA
VE

RV
IL
LE

20
18

 A
nn

ua
l F
in
an
ci
al
 R
ep

or
t

70



Au
di
t S

um
m
ar
y

•
Th
an
k 
yo
u 
fo
r a

llo
w
in
g 
us
 to

 se
rv
e 
as
 y
ou

r a
ud

ito
rs

•
Sp
ec
ia
l t
ha
nk
s t
o 
To
ny
a 
an
d 
th
e 
st
af
f o

f t
he

 fi
na
nc
e 
de

pa
rt
m
en

t f
or
 th

ei
r h

ar
d 
w
or
k 

an
d 
co
op

er
at
io
n 
in
 c
om

pl
et
in
g 
th
e 
au
di
t 

•
W
e 
iss
ue

d 
an

 u
nm

od
ifi
ed

 (c
le
an
) o

pi
ni
on

•
W
e 
re
po

rt
ed

 n
o 
m
at
er
ia
l w

ea
kn
es
s 
in
 in
te
rn
al
 c
on

tr
ol
 

•
W
e 
re
po

rt
ed

 n
o 
in
st
an
ce
s o

f n
on

co
m
pl
ia
nc
e 
w
ith

 la
w
s a

nd
 re

gu
la
tio

ns

71



G
en

er
al
 F
un

d 
Su
m
m
ar
y

$3
,1
46

,8
25

 , 
48
%

$1
,9
41

,1
75

 , 
29
%

$1
,2
75

,9
68

 , 
19
%

$2
69

,9
48

 , 
4%

Re
ve
nu

es

Ad
 V
al
or
em

 T
ax
es

U
nr
es
tr
ic
te
d

In
te
rg
ov
er
nm

en
ta
l

O
th
er
 T
ax
es
 &

Li
ce
ns
es

O
th
er

72



G
en

er
al
 F
un

d 
Su
m
m
ar
y

$3
,4
25

,8
11

 , 
53
%

$8
92

,9
95

 , 
14
%

$8
06

,5
88

 , 
12
%

$1
,3
51

,8
23

 , 
21
%

Ex
pe

nd
itu

re
s

Pu
bl
ic
 S
af
et
y

G
en

er
al

G
ov
er
nm

en
t

Tr
an
sp
or
ta
tio

n

O
th
er

73



G
en

er
al
 F
un

d 
Su
m
m
ar
y

$5
,6
73

,5
35

 
$6

,2
88

,8
85

 
$7

,0
14

,2
14

 

$5
,0
71

,5
29

 
$5

,5
91

,6
23

 
$6

,3
03

,6
23

 

 $
‐

 $
1,
00

0,
00

0

 $
2,
00

0,
00

0

 $
3,
00

0,
00

0

 $
4,
00

0,
00

0

 $
5,
00

0,
00

0

 $
6,
00

0,
00

0

 $
7,
00

0,
00

0

 $
8,
00

0,
00

0

20
16

20
17

20
18

To
ta
l F
un

d 
Ba

la
nc
e

Av
ai
la
bl
e 
Fu
nd

 B
al
an
ce

Fu
nd

Ba
la
nc
e 
Av

ai
la
bl
e

74



G
en

er
al
 F
un

d 
Su
m
m
ar
y

78
.8
%

93
.9
%

96
.2
%

97
.3
%

30
.0
%

40
.0
%

50
.0
%

60
.0
%

70
.0
%

80
.0
%

90
.0
%

10
0.
0%

11
0.
0%

20
15

20
16

20
17

20
18

Po
p.
 G
ro
up

 A
vg

To
w
n 
of
 W

ea
ve
rv
ill
e

M
un

ic
ip
al
 A
vg

Fu
nd

Ba
la
nc
e 
Av

ai
la
bl
e

As
 a
 %
 o
f N

et
 E
xp
en

di
tu
re
s

75



En
te
rp
ris
e 
Fu
nd

 S
um

m
ar
y

W
at
er
 a
nd

 S
ew

er
Fu
nd

20
18

20
17

W
or
ki
ng

 c
ap
ita

l
$ 
   
 3
,0
55

,7
22

$ 
   
 2
,8
75

,9
72

W
or
ki
ng

ca
pi
ta
l i
n 
m
on

th
s e

xp
en

di
tu
re
s 

(b
ud

ge
ta
ry

ba
sis
)

19
.7
 m

on
th
s

22
.3
 m

on
th
s

U
nr
es
tr
ic
te
d 
ne

t p
os
iti
on

2,
89

9,
60

9
2,
81

2,
54

7

O
pe

ra
tin

g 
in
co
m
e 
(lo

ss
)

23
2,
77
7

23
4,
08
2

Ch
an
ge
 in

 n
et
 p
os
iti
on

21
8,
37
6

19
7,
12
6

Ca
sh
 fl
ow

s f
ro
m
 o
pe

ra
tin

g 
ac
tiv

iti
es

57
8,
14

3
60

8,
25

7

N
et
 in
cr
ea
se
 (d

ec
re
as
e)
 in

 c
as
h

14
7,
55
5

40
5,
89
7

76



TO
W
N
O
F
W

EA
VE

RV
IL
LE

20
18

 A
nn

ua
l F
in
an
ci
al
 R
ep

or
t

77



TOWN OF WEAVERVILLE 
TOWN COUNCIL AGENDA ITEM 

 

MEETING DATE:  November 20, 2017   

SUBJECT: Weaverville ABC Audit Presentation 

PRESENTER:   Rob Chason, ABC Board Chairman 

ATTACHMENTS: No 
  
 
DESCRIPTION/SUMMARY OF REQUEST:  

The annual audit of the Weaverville Alcoholic Beverage Commission has been completed 
and Rob Chason, the Board Chairman, will be at tonight’s meeting to present the audit 
report. 

 

 

 

  

78



Weaverville ABC Board
(A Component Unit of the Town of Weaverville)

Weaverville, North Carolina

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the Years Ended June 30, 2018 and 2017

79



Weaverville ABC Board
(A Component Unit of the Town of Weaverville)

Weaverville, North Carolina

TABLE OF CONTENTS

Page(s)

FINANCIAL SECTION

Independent Auditor’s Report                                                                                                   1- 2

Management’s Discussion and Analysis                                                                                  3 - 6

Basic Financial Statements

Statements of Net Position                                                                                             7

Statements of Revenue, Expenses and Changes in Net Position                                 8

Statements of Cash Flows                                                                                               9

Notes to the Financial Statements                                                                                    10 - 19

Required Supplementary Information

Schedule of ABC Board’s Proportionate Share of Net Pension Liability                        20

Schedule of ABC Board’s Contributions                                                                         21

Supplementary Information

Schedules of Store Expenses                                                                                         22

Schedules of Administrative Expenses                                                                           23

Schedule of Distributions of Profits                                                                                 24
  

Schedule of Revenue and Expenditures-Budget and Actual                                          25

80



BURLESON & EARLEY, P.A.
CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS

Independent Auditor’s Report

Board of Directors
Weaverville ABC Board
Weaverville, North Carolina

Report on the Financial Statements

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the Weaverville ABC Board, a component unit 
of the Town of Weaverville, which comprise the statements of net position as of June 30, 2018 and 2017,  
and the related statements of revenues, expenses and changes in net position, and cash flows for the 
years then ended, and the related notes to the financial statements.

Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in 
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America; this includes 
the design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair 
presentation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or 
error.  

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audits.  We 
conducted our audits in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of 
America.  Those standards require that we plan and perform the audits to obtain reasonable assurance 
about whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement. 

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in 
the financial statements.  The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the 
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or 
error.  In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity’s 
preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are 
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of 
the entity’s internal control.  Accordingly, we express no such opinion.  An audit also includes evaluating 
the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant accounting 
estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial 
statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for 
our audit opinions.

POST OFFICE BOX 2125 ♦ CANDLER, NC  28715

902 SAND HILL ROAD ♦ ASHEVILLE, NC 28806

TELEPHONE: (828) 251-2846 ♦ FAX: (828) 251-1144

81



Opinions

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the 
financial position of the Weaverville ABC Board as of June 30, 2018 and 2017, and the respective 
changes in financial position, and where applicable, cash flows thereof for the years ended in accordance 
with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.

Other Matters

Required Supplementary Information

Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that the Management’s 
Discussion and Analysis, the Local Government Employees’ Retirement System’s Schedule of 
Proportionate Share of Net Pension Liability (Asset) and Schedule of Contributions be presented to 
supplement the basic financial statements.  Such information, although not a part of the basic financial 
statements, is required by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board, who considers it to be an 
essential part of financial reporting for placing the basic financial statements in an appropriate 
operational, economic, or historical context. We have applied certain limited procedures to the required 
supplementary information in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States 
of America, which consisted principally of inquiries of management about the methods of preparing the 
information and comparing the information for consistency with management’s responses to our inquiries, 
the basic financial statements, and other knowledge we obtained during our audit of the basic financial 
statements.  We do not express an opinion or provide any assurance on the information because the 
limited procedures do not provide us with sufficient evidence to express an opinion or provide any 
assurance.

Other Information

Our audits were conducted for the purpose of forming opinions on the financial statements as a whole.  
The Schedules of Store Expenses, Schedules of Administrative Expenses, Schedule of Distributions of 
Profits and Schedule of Revenues and Expenditures – Budget vs. Actual are presented for purposes of 
additional analysis and are not a required part of the basic financial statements.  

The Schedules of Store Expenses, Schedules of Administrative Expenses, Schedule of Distributions of 
Profits and Schedule of Revenues and Expenditures – Budget vs. Actual are the responsibility of 
management and were derived from and relate directly to the underlying accounting and other records 
used to prepare the financial statements.  The information has been subjected to the auditing procedures 
applied in the audit of the financial statements and certain additional procedures, including comparing and 
reconciling such information directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the 
basic financial statements themselves, and other additional procedures in accordance with auditing 
standards generally accepted in the United States of America.  In our opinion, the information is fairly 
stated, in all material respects, in relation to the financial statements taken as a whole.

Burleson & Earley, P.A. 
Certified Public Accountants
September 5, 2018

2

82



 

3 
 

MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS 
 
 
 
 
The following Management Discussion and Analysis (MD&A) of the Weaverville ABC Board’s activities 
and financial performance provides the reader with an overview to the financial statements of the 
Weaverville ABC Board for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2018.  The information contained in this MD&A 
should be considered in conjunction with the financial information contained in the various sections of this 
audit report. 
 
FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS 
 

 The assets of the Weaverville ABC Board exceeded its liabilities at the close of the fiscal year by 
$426,073 (net position).   

 The Board’s total net position increased by $120,751, primarily due to operations. 
 The Board distributed profits to the Town of Weaverville of $51,640 

 
OVERVIEW OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
 
The audited financial statements of the ABC Board consist of 3 components.  They are as follows: 
 
 Management’s Discussion and Analysis 
 Basic Financial Statements 
 Additional Information Required by the ABC Commission  
 
The Basic Financial Statements are prepared using the full accrual basis of accounting.  They consist of 3 
statements.  The first is the Statement of Net Position.  Assets and liabilities are classified between 
current and long-term.  This statement provides a summary of the Board’s investments in assets and 
obligations to creditors.  Liquidity and financial flexibility can be evaluated using the information contained 
in this statement. 
 
The next statement is the Statement of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net Position.  This 
statement is used in evaluating whether the Board has recovered all of its costs through sales.  Its 
information is used in determining credit worthiness. 
 
The final required statement is the Statement of Cash Flows.  This statement reports cash inflows and 
outflows in the following categories: operating, investing, and financing activities.  Based on this data, the 
user can determine the sources of cash, the uses of cash, and the change in cash. 
 
The notes to the financial statements provide more detail information and should be read in conjunction 
with the statements. 
 
The ABC Commission requires some schedules in addition to the information required by generally 
accepted accounting principles.  They include a Schedule of Store Expenses, a Schedule of 
Administrative Expenses, a Schedule of Distributions of Profits and a Budget to Actual Reconciliation.  
 
FINANCIAL ANALYSIS OF THE ABC BOARD 
 
Net position is an indicator of the fiscal health of the Board.  Assets exceeded liabilities by $426,073 in 
2018.  The largest component of net position is unrestricted. The net investment in capital assets 
continues to be negative as the debt exceeds the net book value of the capital assets. 
 
 
 
 
 
 

83



 

4 
 

Following is a summary of the Statement of Net Position: 
 

Table 1 
Condensed Statement of Net Position 

 
This Yr Over This Yr Over

Last Yr Last Yr
At June 30 2018 2017 2016 $ Change % Change
Assets
Current and Other Assets 662,363$           605,119$           481,447$           57,244$         9.5%
Capital Assets 999,555             1,074,008          1,148,482          (74,453)          -6.9%
Deferred Outflows of Resources 41,014               55,878               23,061               (14,864)          -26.6%
Total Assets 1,702,932$       1,735,005$       1,652,990$       (32,073)$        -1.8%

Liabilities
Current Liabilities 216,486$           281,490$           195,698$           (65,004)$        -23.1%
Non-current Liabilities 1,059,218          1,146,393          1,176,773          (87,175)          -7.6%
Deferred Inflows of Resources 1,155                 1,800                 4,992                 (645)               -35.8%
Total Liabilities 1,276,859$        1,429,683$        1,377,463$        (152,824)$      -10.7%

Net Position
Net Investment in Capital Assets (87,384)              (85,808)              (80,744)              (1,576)            -1.8%
Restricted Net Position 90,224               83,392               76,958               6,832             8.2%
Unrestricted Net Position 423,233             307,738             279,313             115,495         37.5%
Total Net Position 426,073$          305,322$          275,527$          120,751$       39.5%

 
Net position increased by 39.5% from 2017 compared to a 10.8% increase between 2017 and 2016.  
Income from operations increased by 4.2% from 2017 and by 21.5% between 2017 and 2016.  Following 
is a summary of the changes in net position: 
 

Table 2 
Condensed Statement of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net 

Position
This Yr Over This Yr Over

Last Yr Last Yr

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30 2018 2017 2016 $ Change % Change

Operating Revenues 3,032,960$         2,814,165$         2,598,073$         218,795$           7.8%

Less; Taxes on Gross Sales 687,810              636,990              587,777              50,820               8.0%

Net Sales 2,345,150           2,177,175           2,010,296           167,975             7.7%

Cost of Sales 1,604,724           1,483,608           1,381,122           121,116             8.2%

Gross Profit 740,426              693,567              629,174              46,859               6.8%

Less: Operating Expenses 502,990              465,793              441,763              37,197               8.0%

Income from Operations 237,436              227,774              187,411              9,662                 4.2%

Non-Operating Revenues and Expenses (53,372)               (56,904)               (58,317)               3,532                 6.2%

Change in Net Position Before Distributions 184,064              170,870              129,094              13,194               7.7%

Distributions 63,313                141,075              46,000                (77,762)              -55.1%

Change in Net Position 120,751              29,795                83,094                90,956               305.3%

Net Position, Beginning 305,322              275,527              192,433              29,795               10.8%
Net Position, Ending 426,073$            305,322$            275,527$            120,751$           39.5%

 
 

84



 

5 
 

 
The increase in sales is inflationary in nature. There is a decrease in non-operating revenues and 
expenses due to lower interest expense as debt payable is decreasing. The increase in distributions is 
due to the Board making a discretionary distribution to the Town because of improved cash flow. 
 

 
Following is a breakdown of sales by source: 

 
This Yr Over This Yr Over

Last Yr Last Yr
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30 2018 2017 2016 $ Change % Change
Retail Liquor Sales 2,882,589$     2,677,889$     2,477,900$     204,700$          7.6%
Mixed Beverage Sales 140,560          126,602          110,795          13,958              11.0%
Retail Wine Sales 9,811              9,674              9,378              137                   1.4%
Total Sales 3,032,960$    2,814,165$    2,598,073$    218,795$          7.8%

 
     

Operating Revenues

Liquor Sales
95.0%

Mixed 
Beverage

4.6%

Wine Sales
0.3%

 
                                                                                   
 
                                           

Operating Expenses

Administrative
22%

Store
63%

Depreciation
15%

 
 
The percentage of mixed beverage sales to the total increased by .11% in 2018 and increased by .23% in 
2017 compared to 2016. 

 
 
 
 
 
 

85



 

6 
 

 
 

CAPITAL ASSET AND DEBT ADMINISTRATION 
 
Capital Assets 
Investment in capital assets as of June 30, 2018, totals $999,555, net of accumulated depreciation.  
There were no capital asset additions during 2018.   
 

Table 3 
Capital Assets 

(net of depreciation) 
 

This Yr Over This Yr Over
Last Yr Last Yr

2018 2017 2016 $ Change % Change
Building 1,479,898$         1,479,898$         1,479,898$       -$             0.0%
Equipment & furniture 98,681                98,681                98,681              -               0.0%
Computer equipment 30,398                30,398                30,398              -               0.0%

1,608,977           1,608,977           1,608,977         -               0.0%
Accumulated depreciation (609,422)            (534,969)            (460,495)           (74,453)        -13.9%

999,555$            1,074,008$         1,148,482$       (74,453)$      -6.9%

 
Additional information on the Store’s capital assets can be found in Note 1 of the Basic Financial 
Statements. 
 
Debt Administration 
Long-term debt consists of notes payable related to the original construction of the store.   
 

Table 4 
Summary of Changes in Long Term 

Debt
This Yr Over This Yr Over

Last Yr Last Yr

2018 2017 2016 $ Change % Change
Notes Payable 1,086,939$         1,159,816$         1,229,226$            (72,877)$         -6.3%

 
 

Economic Factors 
       
The Board developed and approved a budget for fiscal year 2018-2019.  The Board expects continued 
steady growth in sales as the Town of Weaverville continues to experience growth in population and 
commercial development. The Board expects to manage expenses and add to working capital within the 
budgeted amounts. 

 
Requests for Information 
 
This report is intended to provide a summary of the financial condition of the Weaverville ABC Board. 
Questions or requests for additional information should be addressed to:  
 

Robert Chason, Chairman 
Weaverville ABC Board 

7 Northridge Commons Parkway, Suite 101 
Weaverville, NC 28787 

86



Assets 2018 2017
Current Assets
Cash and Cash Equivalents 509,010$      422,335$      
Accounts Receivable -                531               
Inventory 145,617 174,286
Prepaid Expenses 7,736 7,967
     Total Current Assets 662,363        605,119        

Non-current Assets
Property Plant and Equipment
(net of accumulated depreciation) 999,555 1,074,008

Deferred Outflows of Resources - Pension Deferrals 41,014 55,878          

Liabilities
Current Liabilities
Current Portion of Long-term Debt 76,520$        72,878$        
Accounts Payable 40,255 60,794
Taxes Payable 78,623 73,222
Payroll Taxes Payable 4,887 6,666

Distributions Payable 5,477            56,487          
Accrued Interest Payable 10,724 11,443          
     Total Current Liabilities 216,486        281,490        

Non-current Liabilities
Net Pension Liability 40,788 51,359          
Compensated Absences 8,011 8,096            
Long-term Portion of Debt 1,010,419 1,086,938

Total Liabilities 1,275,704     1,427,883     

Deferred Inflows of Resources - Pension Deferrals 1,155 1,800            

Net Position
Net Investment in Capital Assets (87,384)         (85,808)         
Restricted for Working Capital 90,224 72,286          
Unrestricted 423,233        318,844        
Total Net Position 426,073$      305,322$      

Weaverville ABC Board
(A Component Unit of the Town of Weaverville)

Statements of Net Position

June 30, 2018 and 2017

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
7

87



Operating Revenue 2018 2017
Liquor Sales - Regular 2,882,589$   2,677,889$   
Wine Sales 9,811 9,674
Mixed Beverage Sales 140,560 126,602
Total Gross Sales 3,032,960     2,814,165     

Deduct Taxes on Gross Sales
State Excise Tax (665,346) (616,268)
Mixed Beverage Tax (Revenue) (11,759) (10,559)
Mixed Beverage Tax (Human Resources) (1,176) (1,054)
Rehabiliation Tax (8,842) (8,432)
Wine Sales Tax (687) (677)
Total Taxes (687,810)       (636,990)       

Net Sales 2,345,150     2,177,175     

Deduct Cost of Sales
Cost of Goods Sold 1,604,724 1,483,608

Gross Profit on Sales 740,426        693,567        

Deduct Operating Expenses
Store Expenses 319,395        285,025        
Administrative Expenses 109,142        106,294        
Depreciation Expense 74,453 74,474
Total Operating Expenses 502,990        465,793        

Income from Operations 237,436        227,774        

Nonoperating Revenues and Expenses
Interest Expense (54,858) (58,368)
Miscellaneous Income 1,044 70
Interest Income 442 394
Gain on Disposal of Assets 0 1,000            

Change in Net Position Before Distributions 184,064        170,870        

Deduct
Law Enforcement 4,864 5,684
Alcohol Education 6,809 7,958

Change in Net Position Before Profit Distributions 172,391        157,228        

Profit Distributions
  Town of Weaverville 51,640 127,433

Change in Net Position 120,751        29,795          

Net Position, Beginning of Year 305,322        275,527        

Net Position, End of Year 426,073$      305,322$      

Weaverville ABC Board
(A Component Unit of the Town of Weaverville)

Statements of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net Position

For the years ended June 30, 2018 and 2017

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
8

88



Cash Flows from Operating Activities: 2018 2017
Cash Received from Customers 3,034,535$      2,813,704$      
Payments for Inventory Costs (1,596,593)       (1,492,238)       
Payments for Operating Expenses (426,522)          (382,199)          
Liquor Sales Tax Paid (682,409)          (630,362)          
     Net Cash Provided by Operating Activities 329,011           308,905           

Cash Flows from Capital and Related Financing Activities:
Proceeds from asset disposal -                   1,000               
Principal Payments on Long-term Debt (72,878)            (69,410)            
Interest Payments on Long-term Debt (55,577)            (59,052)            
     Net Cash Used by Capital and Related Financing Activities (128,455)          (127,462)          

Cash Flows from Non-Capital Financing Activities:
Law Enforcement Distributions (5,104)              (3,162)              
Alcohol Education Distributions (7,144)              (4,428)              
Profit Distributions to Primary Government (102,075)          (76,998)            
      Net Cash Used by Non-Capital Financing Activities (114,323)          (84,588)            

Cash Flows from Investing Activities:
Interest Earned on Investments 442                  394                  
     Net Cash Provided by Investing Activities 442                  394                  

Net Increase in Cash and Cash Equivalents 86,675             97,249             
Cash and Cash Equivalents, beginning of year 422,335           325,086           
Cash and Cash Equivalents, end of year 509,010$         422,335$         

Reconciliation of Income from Operations to
      Net Cash Provided by Operating Activities

     Income from Operations 237,436$         227,774$         

Adjustments to Reconcile Income from Operations
     to Net Cash Provided by Operating Activities:
     Depreciation 74,453             74,474             
     Restitution Income 1,044               70                    
     Changes in Assets and Liabilities:
         (Increase) Decrease in Accounts Receivable 531                  (531)                 
         (Increase) Decrease in Inventory 28,669             (29,607)            
         (Increase) Decrease in Prepaid Expenses 231                  3,715               
         (Increase) Decrease in Deferred Outflows of Resources for Pensions 14,864             (32,817)            
         (Decrease) Increase in Accounts Payable (20,539)            20,977             
         (Decrease) Increase in Taxes Payable 5,401               6,628               
         (Decrease) Increase in Payroll Taxes Payable (1,779)              (1,084)              
         (Decrease) Increase in Compensated Absences (85)                   741                  
         (Decrease) Increase in Net Pension Liability (10,571)            41,757             
         (Decrease) Increase in Deferred Inflows of Resources for Pensions (645)                 (3,192)              
                        Total Adjustments 91,574             81,131             

     Net Cash Provided by Operating Activities 329,010$         308,905$         

Weaverville ABC Board
(A Component Unit of the Town of Weaverville)

Statements of Cash Flows

For the years ended June 30, 2018 and 2017

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
9

89





10



WEAVERVILLE ABC BOARD
(A component unit of the Town of Weaverville)

Notes to the Financial Statements
June 30, 2018

Note 1. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

Principles used in determining the scope of the entity for financial reporting:
The Weaverville ABC Board (the ABC Board), a component unit of the Town of Weaverville, is a 
corporate body with powers outlined by General Statutes [Chapter 18B-701.]  The Town’s 
governing body appoints the ABC Board.

The ABC Board is required by State Statute to distribute its surpluses to the general fund of the 
Town, which represents a financial benefit to the Town.  Therefore, the ABC Board is reported as 
a discretely presented component unit in the Town’s financial statements.

Organizational History
The Board was organized under the provisions of Session Law of the North Carolina Legislature, 
General Assembly of North Carolina, September 15, 2008, and implemented by a Town wide 
election. The Town Board appointed three individuals to serve on the ABC Board with staggered 
terms of three years.

North Carolina General Statute (18B-805(c)(2)(3)) requires the Weaverville ABC Board expend at 
least 5% of profits for law enforcement and at least 7% of the same profits for alcohol education 
and rehabilitation purposes.

Basis of Presentation
All activities of the ABC Board are accounted for within a single proprietary (enterprise) fund.  
Proprietary funds are used to account for operations that are (a) financed and operated in a 
manner similar to private business enterprises where the intent of the governing body is that the 
cost of providing goods or services to the general public on a continuing basis be financed or 
recovered primarily through user charges; or (b) where the governing body has decided that 
periodic determination of revenues earned, expenses incurred, and/or the change in net position
is appropriate for capital maintenance, public policy, management control, accountability, or other 
purposes.

Basis of Accounting
The financial statements have been prepared using the accrual basis of accounting. All sales are 
made by cash, debit or credit card and recorded at the time of sale. Other revenues are recorded 
when earned. Expenses are recognized when incurred. 

Use of Estimates
The preparation of financial statements in conformity with generally accepted accounting 
principles requires management to make certain estimates and assumptions that affect the 
reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the 
statement of net position date, and reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the 
reporting period.  Estimates are used to determine depreciation expense, the allowance for 
doubtful accounts and certain claims and judgment liabilities, among other accounts. Actual 
results may differ from those estimates.

Cash and Cash Equivalents
For the purposes of the statement of cash flows, the ABC Board considers all highly liquid 
investments (including restricted assets) with a maturity of three months or less when purchased 
to be cash equivalents.

Accounts Receivable
Accounts receivable are generally amounts due from another ABC Board for the purchase of 
inventory.  All of this amounts is deemed collectible, thus no allowance for doubtful accounts has 
been recorded.

90





11



Inventories
Inventories are valued at the lower of cost (FIFO) or market.

Capital Assets
The Board’s capital assets are defined as assets with an initial, individual cost of $500 or more. 
Donated capital assets received prior to June 30, 2015 are recorded at their estimated fair value 
at the date of donation.  Donated capital assets received after June 30, 2015 are recorded at 
acquisition value.  All other purchased or constructed capital assets are reported at cost or 
estimated historical cost. The cost of normal maintenance and repairs that do not add to the value 
of the asset or materially extend assets’ lives are not capitalized. When an asset is disposed of, 
the cost of the asset and the related accumulated depreciation are removed from the books. Any 
gain or loss on disposition is reflected in the earnings for the period. Assets are depreciated on a 
straight-line basis over the following years:
                                                                                    Useful Life
Building    25 years
Equipment & furniture 5 – 15 years
Computer equipment 5 years

Deferred Outflows/Inflows of Resources
In addition to assets, the statement of financial position will sometimes report a separate section 
for deferred outflows of resources.  This separate financial statement element, Deferred Outflows 
of Resources, represents a consumption of net position that applies to a future period and so will 
not be recognized as an expense or expenditure until then.  The ABC Board has one item that 
meets this criterion, pension deferrals for the 2018 fiscal year.  In addition to liabilities, the 
statement of financial position will sometimes report a separate section for deferred inflows of 
resources.  This separate financial statement element, Deferred Inflows of Resources, represents 
an acquisition of net position that applies to a future period and so will not be recognized as 
revenue until then.  The ABC Board has one item that meets the criterion for this category -
pension deferrals for the 2018 fiscal year.

Defined Benefit Cost-Sharing Plans
For purposes of measuring the net pension liability, deferred outflows of resources and deferred 
inflows of resources related to pensions, and pension expense, information about the fiduciary 
net position of the Local Governmental Employees’ Retirement System (LGERS) and additions 
to/deductions from LGERS’ fiduciary net position have been determined on the same basis as 
they are reported by LGERS.  For this purpose, plan member contributions are recognized in the 
period in which the contributions are due.  The ABC Board’s employer contributions are 
recognized when due and the ABC Board has a legal requirement to provide the contributions.  
Benefits and refunds are recognized when due and payable in accordance with the terms of 
LGERS.  Investments are reported at fair value.

Net Position
Net Position consists of the following:

Net investment in capital assets - This component of net position consists of capital assets, 
including any restricted capital assets, net of accumulated depreciation and reduced by the 
outstanding balances of any borrowings that are attributable to the acquisition, construction, or 
improvement of those assets.  If there are significant unspent related debt proceeds at year-end, 
the portion of the debt attributable to the unspent proceeds is not included in the calculation of net 
investment in capital assets.  Rather, that portion of the debt is included in the same net position
component as the unspent proceeds.

Restricted for capital improvements - State law [G.S. 18B-805(d)] requires approval of the 
appointing authority to establish this account.

Restricted for working capital - North Carolina Alcoholic Beverage Control Commission Rule 
[.0902] defines working capital as the total of cash, investments and inventory less all unsecured 
liabilities.  An ABC board shall set its working capital requirements at not less than two weeks' 

91





12



average gross sales of the last fiscal year or greater than four months' average gross sales of the 
last fiscal year.  Average gross sales means gross receipts from the sale of Alcoholic beverages 
less distributions require by State law [G.S. 18B-805(b), (2), (3), and (4)].

Unrestricted net position - This component of net position consists of net position that does not 
meet the definition of restricted or net investment in capital assets.

Note 2. Stewardship, Compliance and Accountability

For the fiscal year ended June 30, 2018 the expenditures made by the ABC Board for taxes 
based on revenue and cost of goods sold exceed the authorized appropriations made by the 
governing board by $26,744 and $81,399, respectively.  These excesses were directly related to 
positive variances in sales.  Additionally, the expenditures made by the ABC Board for debt 
service, law enforcement distributions and alcohol education distributions exceeded the 
authorized appropriations made by the governing board by a total of $2,539.  Management and 
the Board will more closely review the budget reports to ensure compliance in future years.

Note 3. Detail Notes on All Funds

Deposits
All deposits of the ABC Board are made in board-designated official depositories and are 
collateralized as required by State law [G.S. 159-31].  The ABC Board may designate, as an 
official depository, any bank or savings association whose principal office is located in North 
Carolina.  Also, the ABC Board may establish Time deposit accounts such as NOW and Super 
NOW accounts, money market accounts, and certificates of deposit.

All of the ABC Board's deposits are insured using the Pooling Method.  Under this method, which 
is a collateral pool, all uninsured deposits are collateralized with securities held by the State 
Treasurer's agent in the name of the State Treasurer.  Since the State Treasurer is acting in a 
fiduciary capacity for the ABC Board, these deposits are considered to be held by the ABC Board 
agent in the ABC Board's name.  The amount of the pledged collateral is based on an approved 
averaging method for non-interest bearing deposits and the actual current balance for interest 
bearing deposits.  Depositories using the Pooling Method report to the State Treasurer the 
adequacy of their pooled collateral covering uninsured deposits.  The State Treasurer does not 
confirm this information with the ABC Board or the escrow agent.  Because of the inability to 
measure the exact amount of collateral pledged for the ABC Board under the Pooling Method, the 
potential exists for under collateralization, and this risk may increase in periods of high cash 
flows.  However, the State Treasurer of North Carolina enforces strict standards of financial 
stability for each depository that collateralizes public deposits under the Pooling Method.

At June 30, 2018, the ABC Board's deposits had a carrying amount of $509,010, of which $1,288 
is held in petty cash funds, and a bank balance of $524,475.  Deposits up to $250,000 are 
covered by federal depository insurance. Deposits in excess of $250,000, in the amount of 
$274,475, are insured under the pooling method.

At June 30, 2017, the ABC Board's deposits had a carrying amount of $422,335, of which $1,288 
is held in petty cash funds, and a bank balance of $490,822. Deposits up to $250,000 are 
covered by federal depository insurance. Deposits in excess of $250,000, in the amount of 
$240,822, are insured under the pooling method.

92





13



Capital Assets

Capital asset activity for the year ended June 30, 2018 was as follows: 

Beginning Ending

Balances Increases Decreases Balances

Capital Assets Being Depreciated:

  Buildings 1,479,898$     -$        -$      1,479,898$     

  Equipment and Furniture 98,681           -         -        98,681           

  Computer Equipment 30,398           -         -        30,398           

     Total capital assets being depreciated 1,608,977       -         -        1,608,977       

Less Accumulated Depreciation For:

  Buildings 458,769          59,196    -        517,965          

  Equipment and Furniture 61,368           9,739      -        71,107           

  Computer Equipment 14,832           5,518      -        20,350           

     Total accumulated depreciation 534,969          74,453    -        609,422          

Total capital assets being depreciated, net 1,074,008$     999,555$        

Pension Plan Obligations

Local Government Employees' Retirement System
Plan Description.  The ABC Board is a participating employer in the statewide Local 
Governmental Employees' Retirement System (LGERS), a cost-sharing multiple-employer 
defined benefit pension plan administered by the State of North Carolina.  LGERS membership is 
comprised of general employees and local law enforcement officers (LEOs) of participating local 
governmental entities. Article 3 of G.S. Chapter 128 assigns the authority to establish and amend 
benefit provisions to the North Carolina General Assembly.  Management of the plan is vested in 
the LGERS Board of Trustees, which consists of 13 members – nine appointed by the Governor, 
one appointed by the State Senate, one appointed by the State House of Representatives, and 
the State Treasurer and State Superintendent, who serve as ex-officio members.  The Local 
Governmental Employees' Retirement System is included in the Comprehensive Annual Financial 
Report (CAFR) for the State of North Carolina.  The State's CAFR includes financial statements 
and required supplementary information for the LGERS.  That report may be obtained by writing 
to the Office of the State Controller, 1410 Mail Service Center, Raleigh, North Carolina 27699-
1410 or by calling (919) 981-5454 or at www.osc.nc.gov.

Benefits Provided.  LGERS provides retirement and survivor benefits.  Retirement benefits are 
determined as 1.85% of the member’s average final compensation times the member’s years of 
creditable service.  A member’s average final compensation is calculated as the average of a 
member’s four highest consecutive years of compensation.  Plan members are eligible to retire 
with full retirement benefits at age 65 with five years of creditable service, at age 60 with 25 years 
of creditable service, or at any age with 30 years of creditable service.  Plan members are eligible 
to retire with partial retirement benefits at age 50 with 20 years of creditable service or at age 60 
with five years of creditable service.  Survivor benefits are available to eligible beneficiaries of 
members who die while in active service or within 180 days of their last day of service and who 
have either completed 20 years of creditable service regardless of age or have completed five 
years of service and have reached age 60.  Eligible beneficiaries may elect to receive a monthly 
Survivor’s Alternate Benefit for life or a return of the member’s contributions.  The plan does not 
provide for automatic post-retirement benefit increases.  Increases are contingent upon actuarial 
gains of the plan.

Contributions.  Contribution provisions are established by General Statute 128-30 and may be 
amended only by the North Carolina General Assembly.  The ABC Board employees are required 
to contribute 6% of their compensation.  Employer contributions are actuarially determined and 
set annually by the LGERS Board of Trustees.  The ABC Board’s contractually required 
contribution rate for the year ended June 30, 2018, was 8.43% for employees, actuarially 
determined as an amount that, when combined with employee contributions, is expected to 

93





14



finance the costs of benefits earned by employees during the year.  Contributions to the pension 
plan from the ABC Board were $14,446 for the year ended June 30, 2018.

Refunds of Contributions – Board employees who have terminated service as a contributing 
member of LGERS, may file an application for a refund of their contributions.  By state law, 
refunds to members with at least five years of service include 4% interest.  State law requires a 
60 day waiting period after service termination before the refund may be paid.  The acceptance of 
a refund payment cancels the individual’s right to employer contributions or any other benefit 
provided by LGERS.

Pension Liabilities, Pension Expense, and Deferred Outflows of Resources and Deferred Inflows 
of Resources Related to Pensions

At June 30, 2018, the Board reported a liability of $40,788 for its proportionate share of the net 
pension liability.  The net pension liability was measured as of June 30, 2017.  The total pension 
liability used to calculate the net pension liability was determined by an actuarial valuation as of 
December 31, 2016.  The total pension liability was then rolled forward to the measurement date 
of June 30, 2017 utilizing update procedures incorporating the actuarial assumptions.  The 
Board’s proportion of the net pension liability was based on a projection of the Board’s long-term 
share of future payroll covered by the pension plan, relative to the projected future payroll 
covered by the pension plan of all participating LGERS employers, actuarially determined.  At 
June 30, 2017, the Board’s proportion was 0.00267%, which was an increase of 0.00025% from 
its proportion measured as of June 30, 2016.

For the year ended June 30, 2018, the Board recognized pension expense of $18,094.  At June 
30, 2018, the Board reported deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources 
related to pensions from the following sources:

               
Deferred 

Outflows of 

Resources

Deferred 

Inflows of 

Resources

Differences between expected and actual experience 2,350$           1,155$              

Change of assumptions 5,825             -                    

Net difference between projected and actual earnings on 
pension plan investments. 9,904             -                    

Changes in proportion and differences between ABC Board 
contributions and proportionate share of contributions. 8,489             -                    

ABC Board's contributions subsequent to the measurement 
date. 14,446           -                    

      Total 41,014$         1,155$              

$14,446 is reported as deferred outflows of resources related to pensions resulting from Board 
contributions subsequent to the measurement date will be recognized as a decrease of the net 
pension liability in the year ended June 30, 2019.  Other amounts reported as deferred inflows of 
resources related to pensions will be recognized in pension expense as follows:

94





15



2019 6,494$               
2020 14,800               
2021 6,766                 
2022 (2,647)               
2023 -                    
Thereafter -                    
Total 25,413$             

Actuarial Assumptions.  The total pension liability in the December 31, 2016 actuarial valuation 
was determined using the following actuarial assumptions, applied to all periods included in the 
measurement:

Inflation 3.0 percent

Salary increases 3.50 to 8.10 percent, including inflation and 
productivity factor

Investment rate of return 7.20 percent, net of pension plan investment 
expense, including inflation

The plan currently uses mortality tables that vary by age, gender, employee group (i.e. general, 
law enforcement officer) and health status (i.e. disabled and healthy).  The current mortality rates 
are based on published tables and based on studies that cover significant portions of the U.S. 
population.  The healthy mortality rates also contain a provision to reflect future mortality 
improvements.

The actuarial assumptions used in the December 31, 2016 valuation were based on the results of 
an actuarial experience study for the period January 1, 2010 through December 31, 2014.

Future ad hoc COLA amounts are not considered to be substantively automatic and are therefore 
not included in the measurement.

The projected long-term investment returns and inflation assumptions are developed through 
review of current and historical capital markets data, sell-side investment research, consultant 
whitepapers, and historical performance of investment strategies.  Fixed income return 
projections reflect current yields across the U.S. Treasury yield curve and market expectations of 
forward yields projected and interpolated for multiple tenors and over multiple year horizons.  
Global public equity return projections are established through analysis of the equity risk premium 
and the fixed income return projections.  Other asset categories and strategies’ return projections 
reflect the foregoing and historical data analysis.  These projections are combined to produce the 
long-term expected rate of return by weighting the expected future real rates of return by the 
target asset allocation percentage and by adding expected inflation.  The target allocation and 
best estimates of arithmetic real rates of return for each major asset class as of June 30, 2017
are summarized in the following table:

Asset Class Target Allocation

Long-Term Expected 

Real Rate of Return
Fixed Income 29.0% 1.4%
Global Equity 42.0% 5.3%
Real Estate 8.0% 4.3%
Alternatives 8.0% 8.9%
Credit 7.0% 6.0%
Inflation Protection 6.0% 4.0%
     Total 100%

95





16



The information above is based on 30 year expectations developed with the consulting actuary 
for the 2016 asset liability and investment policy study for the North Carolina Retirement 
Systems, including LGERS.  The long-term nominal rates of return underlying the real rates of 
return are arithmetic annualized figures.  The real rates of return are calculated from nominal 
rates by multiplicatively subtracting a long-term inflation assumption of 3.00%.  All rates of return 
and inflation are annualized.

Discount rate.  The discount rate used to measure the total pension liability was 7.25%.  The 
projection of cash flows used to determine the discount rate assumed that contributions from plan 
members will be made at the current contribution rate and that contributions from employers will 
be made at statutorily required rates, actuarially determined.  Based on these assumptions, the 
pension plan’s fiduciary net position was projected to be available to make all projected future 
benefit payments of the current plan members.  Therefore, the long-term expected rate of return 
on pension plan investments was applied to all periods of projected benefit payments to 
determine the total pension liability.

Sensitivity of the Board’s proportionate share of the net pension asset to changes in the discount 
rate.  The following presents the Board’s proportionate share of the net pension asset calculated 
using the discount rate of 7.20 percent, as well as what the Board’s proportionate share of the net 
pension asset or net pension liability would be if it were calculated using a discount rate that is 
one percentage point lower (6.20 percent) or one percentage point higher (8.20 percent) than the 
current rate:

1% 

Decrease 

(6.20%)

Discount 

Rate 

(7.20%)

1% Increase 

(8.20%)
ABC Board's proportionate share of the 
net pension liability (asset) 122,453$  40,790$     (27,373)$    

Pension plan fiduciary net position.  Detailed information about the pension plan’s fiduciary net 
position is available in the separately issued Comprehensive Annual Financial Report (CAFR) for 
the State of North Carolina.

Vacation and Leave Compensation

ABC Board employees may earn up to 27 days vacation per year, depending upon the number of 
years employed. Employees may carry forward up to a maximum of 20 days, and such leave is 
fully vested when earned. Accumulated earned vacation at June 30, 2018 and 2017 is $8,011
and $8,096, respectively.

Employees earn 12 days of sick leave per year. Sick leave may be used in the determination of 
length of service for retirement benefit purposes.  Since the ABC Board has no obligation for the 
accumulated sick leave until it is actually taken, no accrual for sick leave has been made.

Long-Term Debt

During the year ended June 30, 2009, the ABC Board entered into a construction loan with BB&T 
Governmental finance in the amount of $1,500,000 bearing interest at 4.89%. The first payment 
of interest only was due April 17, 2010. Beginning in April of 2011, 19 annual payments of 
$123,007 consisting of principal and interest were required. On October 17, 2013, the ABC Board 
entered into a modification of the loan terms to require quarterly payments instead of annual. No 
other terms of the loan changed. The required quarterly payment is $31,038.05. The loan will 
continue to mature in April 2029. At June 30, 2018 and 2017, the balance on this loan was 
$1,051,407 and $1,121,975, respectively.

During the year ended June 30, 2010, the ABC Board entered into a loan with BB&T 
Governmental Finance in the amount of $50,000 bearing interest at 5.39%. The first payment of 
interest only was due in April 2010. Beginning in April of 2011, 19 annual payments of $4,270 

96





17



consisting of principal and interest were required. On October 17, 2013, the ABC Board entered 
into a modification of the loan terms to require quarterly payments instead of annual. No other 
terms of the loan changed. The loan will continue to mature in April 2029. The required quarterly 
payment is $1,076. At June 30, 2018 and 2017, the balance on this loan was $35,532 and 
$37,841, respectively.

Interest expense for the years ended June 30, 2018 and 2017 was $54,858 and $58,368, 
respectively.

Scheduled principal payments on long-term debt are as follows:

Principal 
Repayments

Interest 
Payments

76,520$         51,936$    

80,343           48,112      

84,358           44,097      

88,573           39,882      

93,000           35,455      

539,534         102,741    

124,610         3,845        
1,086,938$    326,068$  

2022

2024-2028

2029

Year ending June 30

2019

2020

2021

2023

Note 3. Distributions of Income

The ABC Board has made the following profit distributions:

Current Year Total to Date
Town of Weaverville $       51,640 $      260,123

State law (G.S. 18B-805) requires that the minimum distribution set aside in (c)(1) and any profit 
remaining after deducting amounts required for law enforcement and alcohol education and 
retaining proper working capital, be paid quarterly to the appointing authority.

Note 4. Law Enforcement and Alcohol Education Expenses

The ABC Board is required by law to expend at least 5% of its profits for law enforcement and not 
less than 7% for alcohol education (alcohol education requirements follows local enabling act).  
Profits are defined by law for these calculations as change in net position before law enforcement 
and educational expenses, less the 3 ½% markup provided in G.S. 18B-804(b)(5) and the bottle 
charge provided for in G.S. 18B-804(b)(6b).

Profit before distributions 184,062$  

   Less: 3 1/2% tax and bottle charge (86,784)     

Profit subject to expenses percentages 97,278$    

Law enforcement expenditures 4,864$      

   -actual percentage of profit 5%

Provision for alcohol education and rehabilitation 6,809$      

   -actual percentage of profit 7%

97





18



Note 5. Disbursement of Taxes Included in Selling Price

A state excise tax, at the rate of 30% on the retail (net sales) price is charged monthly on liquor 
sales (excluding wine sales).  Transactions for this account for the year are summarized as 
follows:

Taxes payable 7/1/2017 $ 54,745
Taxes collected during the year 665,346
Taxes remitted to Department of Revenue (661,082)
Taxes payable 6/30/2018   $ 59,009

The excise tax is computed in accordance with G.S. 18B-805(i).

The accrued North Carolina excise tax at June 30, 2018 was remitted to the North Carolina 
Department of Revenue in July, 2018.

A bottle charge of one cent on each bottle containing 50 milliliters or less and five cents on each 
bottle containing more than 50 milliliters is collected and distributed monthly to the county 
commissioners for alcoholic education and rehabilitation.  

For the fiscal year, required payments to the County were based on the following bottle sales:

Regular Bottles 153,297 @ 5 cents            $7,665
Mixed Beverage Bottles 6,151 @ 5 cents 308      
Miniature Bottles 86,989 @ 1 cent                 870
Total required payment for the year           $8,842

A "mixed beverage tax" at the rate of $20 per 4 liters is charged on the sale of liquor to be resold 
as mixed beverages.  One-half of the mixed beverage tax is submitted monthly to the Department 
of Revenue.  Five percent of the mixed beverage tax is submitted monthly to the Department of
Human Resources.

The mixed beverage tax for the year was:

Department of Revenue (50%) $11,759
Department of Human Resources (5%)         1,175
Profit Retained (45%) 10,584
Total $23,518

Note 6. Surcharge Collected

The total amount of surcharge collected for the fiscal year was $24,661.  The current rate is $1.40 
per case.

Note 7.  Liquor Sales Tax

The total amount of sales tax collected by the ABC Board and remitted to the Department of 
Revenue for the fiscal year was $201,916. The current sales tax rate is 7%.

Note 8. Working Capital

The ABC Board is required by the Alcoholic Beverage Control Commission rule [.0902] to set its 
working capital requirements at not less than two weeks average gross sales of the last fiscal 
year.  (Gross sales are gross receipts from the sale of alcoholic beverages less distributions as 
defined in G.S. 18B-805(b)(2), (3), and (4)).

98





19



The board's position on this requirement is as follows:

Minimum Amount 90,224$          

Maximum Amount 586,459$        

Actual Amount 525,381$        

The board has met the minimum amount of working capital.

Note 9. Risk Management

The ABC Board is exposed the various risks of loss related to torts; theft of, damage to, and 
destruction of assets; errors and omissions; injuries to employees; and natural disasters.  The 
ABC Board has commercial property, general liability, auto liability, workmen’s compensation 
and employee health coverage.  The board also has liquor legal liability insurance.

There have been no significant reductions in insurance coverage from coverage in the prior year
and settled claims have not exceeded coverage in any of the past three fiscal years.

In accordance with G.S. 18B-700(i), each board member and the employees designated as the 
general manager and finance officer are bonded in the amount of $50,000 by a corporate surety.

Note 10. Litigation Matters

The ABC Board was named in a civil action filed on November 5, 2014 by a person that was 
injured on the sidewalk in front of the ABC store. In the lawsuit, the ABC Board is a co-defendant 
with the Northridge Commons Condominium Association and the Northridge Commons Shop D. 
The ABC Board is being represented by a law firm appointed by their insurance carrier. The 
ABC Board is contesting this matter vigorously.  

Due to the nature of this litigation and its ongoing status, the ABC Board is unable to determine 
the amount of loss, if any, it may sustain. However, the ABC Board believes it has adequate 
insurance coverage for the matter, and in the opinion of management, the amount of liability, if 
any, with respect to this litigation will not materially affect the ABC Board’s financial position or 
results of operations.

Note 11. Change in Accounting Principle

Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) Statement No. 75, Accounting and 
Financial Reporting for Postemployment Benefits Other Than Pension, was to be implemented 
in the fiscal year ending June 30, 2018.  The ABC Board does not have any postemployment 
benefits that should be considered under this standard.

Note 12. Date of Management’s Review for Subsequent Events

Subsequent events have been evaluated through September 5, 2018, which is the date the 
financial statements were available to be issued.

99



Required Supplementary Information

100



2018 2017 2016 2015 2014
ABC Board's proportion of the net pension liability (asset) (%) 0.0027% 0.0024% 0.0021% 0.0010% 0.0008%

ABC Board's proportion of the net pension liability (asset) ($) 40,788 51,359 9,602$    (5,839)$ 9,643$  

ABC Board's covered-employee payroll 148,411$ 137,887$ 136,074$ 81,853$ 58,101$

ABC Board's proportionate share of the net pension liability (asset) as a 

percentage of its covered-employee payroll 27.48% 37.25% 7.06% ( 7.13%) 16.60%

Plan fiduciary net position as a percentage of the total pension liability** 94.18% 91.47% 98.09% 102.64% 94.35%

*  The amounts presented for each fiscal year were determined as of the prior fiscal year ending June 30.

**  This will be the same percentage for all participant employers in the LGERS plan.  

Weaverville ABC Board

ABC Board's Proportionate Share of Net Pension Liability (Asset)

Required Supplementary Information

Last Five Fiscal Years *

Local Government Employees' Retirement System

(A Component Unit of the Town of Weaverville)

See independent auditor's report.

20 101



2018 2017 2016 2015 2014

Contractually required contribution 14,446$        12,140$        10,590$           10,886$           6,947$         

Contributions in relation to the contractually required contribution 14,446          12,140          10,590             10,886             6,947           

Contribution deficiency (excess) -$                  -$                  -$                     -$                     -$                 

ABC Board's covered-employee payroll 171,361$      148,411$      137,887$         136,074$         81,853$       

Contributions as a percentage of covered-employee payroll 8.43% 8.18% 7.68% 8.00% 8.49%

Weaverville ABC Board

ABC Board's Contributions

Required Supplementary Information

Last Five Fiscal Years 

Local Government Employees' Retirement System

(A Component Unit of the Town of Weaverville)

See independent auditor's report.

21 102



Supplementary Information

103



2018 2017
Building Repairs and Maintenance 19,490$          18,573$          
Cash over/short (183)                (106)                
Equipment Repairs and Maintenance 1,381              1,117              
Group Insurance 38,890 32,143            
Insurance 8,744              9,342              
Maintenance Agreement 6,116              5,900              
Payroll 210,307          186,529          
Payroll Taxes 16,884            13,888            
Security 185                 185                 
Supplies 7,824              8,064              
Telephone 2,257              2,204              
Utilities 7,500              7,186              
Total Store Expenses 319,395$        285,025$        

Weaverville ABC Board

Schedules of Store Expenses

For the years ended June 30, 2018 and 2017

(A Component Unit of the Town of Weaverville)

See independent auditor's report.
22

104



2018 2017
Bank Charges 41,422$          37,453$          
Board Member Expense 7,200 7,200
Data Processing -                  958                 
Dues and Subscriptions 2,077 1,393
Late Penaties -                  133                 
Licenses and Permits -                  -                  
Miscellaneous -                  57                   
Office Supplies 1,621 1,637
Outside Services 24,762 23,579
Postage 749 824
Professional Services 12,725 13,449
Retirement Expense 18,094            17,888            
Training 77 -                  
Travel 415 372
Unemployment Tax -                  1,351              
Total Administrative Expenses 109,142$        106,294$        

Weaverville ABC Board

Schedules of Administrative Expenses

For the years ended June 30, 2018 and 2017

(A Component Unit of the Town of Weaverville)

See independent auditor's report.
23

105



Distribution Type Recipient Amount Date of Distribution Restrictions on Use
Law Enforcement Town of Weaverville 1,587$     9/30/2017 Alcohol law enforcement

Town of Weaverville 995          6/29/2018 Alcohol law enforcement
Town of Weaverville 2,282       Payable at 6/30/18 Alcohol law enforcement

Total 4,864$     

Alcohol Education Town of Weaverville 2,222$     9/30/2017 Alcohol and rehab education
Town of Weaverville 1,392       6/29/2018 Alcohol and rehab education
Town of Weaverville 3,195       Payable at 6/30/18 Alcohol and rehab education

Total 6,809$     

Municipality Town of Weaverville 31,747$   9/30/2017 None
Town of Weaverville 19,893     6/29/2018 None

Total 51,640$   

Weaverville ABC Board
(A Component Unit of the Town of Weaverville)

Schedule of Distributions of Profits

For the year ended June 30, 2018

See independent auditor's report.
24 106



2018 2018 2018 Variance
Original Revised Positive
Budget Budget Actual (Negative)

Revenues:
Operating Revenues:
Liquor Sales – Regular -$         -$              2,882,589$ -$          
Mixed Beverage Sales -           -                140,560     -            
Wine/Mixer Sales -           -                9,811         -            
Total 2,874,198 2,874,198 3,032,960  158,762     

Non-Operating Revenues/(Expenses):
Interest Income -           -                442            442            
Restitution Income -           -                1,044         1,044         
Total revenues 2,874,198 2,874,198      3,034,446  160,248     

Expenditures:
Taxes Based on Revenue:
State Excise Tax -           -                665,346     -            
Mixed Beverage Tax (Revenue) -           -                11,759       -            
Mixed Beverage Tax (Human resources) -           -                1,176         -            
Rehabilitation Tax -           -                8,842         -            
Wine/Mixer Sales Tax -           -                687            -            
Total 661,066 661,066 687,810     (26,744)     

Cost of Goods Sold 1,523,325 1,523,325 1,604,724  (81,399)     

Operating Expenses:
Salaries and benefits 300,116 300,116 280,612     19,504       
Board member expense 7,200       7,200             7,200         -            
Utilities 10,600 10,600 9,757         843            
Repairs & maintenance 29,932 29,932 27,172       2,760         
Office/store supplies 11,825 11,825 10,011       1,814         
Insurance – general & bonds 9,155 9,590 8,744         846            
Travel 800 800 492            308            
Professional fees 43,699 43,699 39,564       4,135         
Credit card fees 43,022 43,022 41,422       1,600         
Contingencies 11,000 10,565 -             10,565       
Total 467,349   467,349         424,974     42,375       

Capital outlay: 10,900     10,900           -             10,900       

Debt service: 127,500   127,500         128,454     (954)          
Total expenditures 2,790,140 2,790,140      2,845,962  (55,822)     

Distributions:
Law enforcement 4,204       4,204             4,864         (660)          
Alcohol education & rehab. 5,884       5,884             6,809         (925)          
Municipal 72,942     72,942           51,640       21,302       
Total 83,030     83,030           63,313       19,717       

Total expenditures & distributions 2,873,170 2,873,170      2,909,275  (36,105)     

Revenues over expenditures 1,028       1,028             125,171     124,143     

Other financing (uses):
Working capital retained (Unrestricted funds) (1,028)      (1,028)           (120,751)    (119,723)   

Revenues over expenditures and other financing (uses) -$         -$              4,420$       4,420$       

Reconciliation from budgetary basis (modified accrual) to full accrual:

Reconciling items:
Depreciation (74,453)$    
Increase in compensated absences 85
Pension expense (3,648)
Decrease in accrued interest payable 719
Principal portion of debt payments 72,877       
Total (4,420)        

Change in net position 120,751$   

Weaverville ABC Board

Schedule of Revenues and Expenditures - Budget and Actual 

For the year ended June 30, 2018

(A Component Unit of the Town of Weaverville)

See independent auditor's report.
25 107



TOWN OF WEAVERVILLE 

TOWN COUNCIL AGENDA ITEM 

 

 

Date of Meeting:  November 19, 2018 

 

Subject:   Strategic Plan – Final Draft  

 

Presenter:   Selena Coffey, Town Manager 

Attachments:  Final Draft  
 

                                                        

Description:  

 

At its October workshop, Town Council discussed and made revisions to the draft of the 

2018-2021 Strategic Plan. These revisions have been included in the attached final draft, 

which is ready for approval at this meeting. Staff has also attached a 2018-2021 Strategic 

Plan In Brief document that summarizes the goals and objectives laid out within the Plan. 

 

Action Requested: 

The Town Manager recommends approval of the attached final draft of the Strategic Plan.  

 

 

108



2
0

1
8

 -
 2

0
2

1
 S

tr
a

te
g

ic
 P

la
n

 

Goals: 

Quality services  

 Regional collaboration 

Beneficial land use planning efforts 

Successful downtown  

Legislative outreach 

Town of Weaverville 

North Carolina 

109



Town of Weaverville 
Strategic Plan 2018-2021 

 

 

  

 1 

 

Contents 

Introduction ............................................................................................................................................................ 2 

What is a Strategic Plan? ..................................................................................................................................... 2 

Goals, Strategies, and Action Planning .......................................................................................................... 2 

Identification of Strategic Issues ..................................................................................................................... 3 

Development of the Strategic Plan ................................................................................................................. 6 

Goals ...................................................................................................................................................................... 6 

Objectives ............................................................................................................................................................ 6 

Goal 1:  To provide town services to meet the needs of the community. .............................. 7 

Goal 2:  To improve regional collaboration. ...................................................................................... 8 

Goal 3:  To maximize benefit to the Town in land use planning efforts. ................................ 8 

Goal 4:  To promote a successful downtown. ................................................................................... 9 

Goal 5:  To increase legislative outreach. ........................................................................................ 10 

Implementation of the Strategic Plan......................................................................................................... 10 

Appendix A:  Implementation Plan ............................................................................................................. 11 

 

  

110



Town of Weaverville 
Strategic Plan 2018-2021 

 

 

  

 2 

 

Introduction 
 
The Town of Weaverville is a community in rapid transition, with 

challenges and opportunities presented by our continued growth. To 

be successful as a governmental entity, we must respond strategically 

to the needs of our citizens in an ever-changing environment. Town 

Council wishes to take steps to meet these challenges by engaging in a 

planning process that provides a map for the upcoming years. 

 

Some of the issues and many of the strategies from the earlier 2014 

Strategic Plan have been brought forward and included within this 

Strategic Plan draft. 

 

What is a Strategic Plan? 
 
A strategic plan is an action-oriented set of strategies and action steps developed to 

accomplish a mission that is responsive to a dynamic, changing environment. 

Typically, a Town’s strategic plan addresses the following: 

 

• Identifies the Town’s mission or purpose; 

• Identifies the Town’s issues, including strengths, weaknesses, opportunities, and 

threats; 

• Develops a vision for the Town’s future; 

• Develops strategies designed to realize the shared vision; 

• Formulates an action plan and timeline; 

• Identifies persons or groups responsible for initiating the action(s); and 

• Establishes methods to measure progress and success in achieving the desired 

outcomes. 

 

Goals, Strategies, and Action Planning 

 
In order to ensure that the critical issues are addressed, the Town has identified several 

goals. The goals are general ends toward which the Town intends to direct its efforts. 

Goals are broad statements of policy that are ambitious, clear, concise, and easily 

understood. The Town will be working to meet these goals over the next four years. 

 

111



Town of Weaverville 
Strategic Plan 2018-2021 

 

 

  

 3 

 

In order to make sure that we make progress toward 

meeting our goals, Town Council has 

identified a number of strategies and action steps to 

keep us on track. Strategies describe a plan of attack 

– a description of the programs, approaches, and 

projects to be undertaken. Goals, strategies, and 

objectives are revisited and revised annually. 

 

Identification of Strategic Issues 
 

In February 2018, Town Council began its 2018-2020 Strategic Planning process with a 

retreat facilitated by the Executive Director of the Land of Sky Regional Council. The 

retreat began with the Mayor and each member of Town Council providing input to the 

following set questions: 

 

How do you envision the “perfect” Weaverville in the short term? In the long term? 

What are the Town’s challenges in achieving the aforementioned “perfect” scenario? 

Based on the previous comments, what are the priorities? 

Where do we go from here with the strategic planning process? 

 

The following section reflects raw input for each of the aforementioned questions: 

 

1. How do you envision the “perfect” Weaverville in the short term? In the long term? 

 

 3 – 5 Year Visioning:  

 

• Successful businesses on North and South Main 

Street 

• Thriving businesses downtown 

• Recreational opportunities 

• More walkable town – greenways, sidewalks 

• Affordable housing – mixed income housing, additional housing opportunities 

• Not much different than it is today, i.e. preserve and protect the town the way it 

is now 

• Underground utility lines 

112



Town of Weaverville 
Strategic Plan 2018-2021 

 

 

  

 4 

 

• Cooperation/coordination in terms of land use issues 

• No more fast food 

• Balance of different land uses, i.e. residential, commercial, 

industrial 

• ETJ authority restored (and expanded) 

• Lake Louise Community Center construction 

• Access to I-240 resolved 

• Town will have an idea of where and how much we want to 

grow 

 

15 – 20 Year Visioning 

 

• Strive for a balanced community; Balance of different land uses, i.e. residential, 

commercial and industrial 

• Give serious consideration to traffic ‘choke’ points; Local transportation 

planning 

• Maintain our ‘gem’ of a downtown area 

• Community with diverse public facilities; Walkability, Physical landscape fills the 

needs of a more diverse community 

• Vibrant parks and connected greenways 

• Self-sustaining, vibrant community with a mix of young, old, long-term and new 

residents with a common bond of living in a safe space that meets their needs 

• Annexation of surrounding areas 

• Vibrant entrepreneurial atmosphere 

• Adequate infrastructure/services 

• To be the town where people want to live in or open businesses in 

 

2. What do you perceive as the Town’s challenges in achieving the “perfect 

Weaverville? How could the Town address these challenges? 

 

Note: The second question was posed for the purpose of establishing goals. These are 

noted as sub-bullets below. 

 

• State legislature actions have negative impacts on municipalities: 

▪ Outreach to legislators on significant issues, particularly the Town’s need 

for ability to annex 

• The Town has a small land area: 

113



Town of Weaverville 
Strategic Plan 2018-2021 

 

 

  

 5 

 

▪ Need local legislation for extra-territorial jurisdiction 

▪ Voluntary annexation 

▪ Utility extension policy improvements 

• Encourage involvement by young residents 

▪ Advertising towards younger population 
▪ Educate newcomers about Weaverville 

▪ Popup tents at events by Town of Weaverville 

▪ Make announcements about involvement by young people at events (i.e. 

Music on Main) 

▪ Childcare during meetings 

• Water as an obstacle; Sewer may also pose an obstacle 

• Unifying North Buncombe County 

• Demand for services; Infrastructure limitations (do we have enough resources, 

i.e. firefighters, equipment, etc.) 

• Hostility to planning at the County level 

▪ Relationship development 

• Apathy/NIMBY; Young people are too busy; Different mindset 

▪ Find ways to connect with young people 

▪ Make use of technology, social media (i.e. Facebook, Twitter, Instagram, e-

newsletter, etc.) 

• Developing and maintaining our own identity 
 

3. Based on the comments from the first two questions, what are the priorities? 

 

• Building legislative relationships 

• Maintaining the Town’s small-town character as best as possible  

• Come to consensus on water and annexation growth so that Council is consistent 

with the public; Develop that strategy and stay consistent with it  

• Identify our best assets and determine how best to capitalize on those assets 

Example: intersection of Marshal Hwy/Weaver Blvd and I-26; Identify what the 

assets are to help us achieve our goals 

• Focus on legislative relationships to re-establish ETJ and review zoning map and 

identify areas consistent or inconsistent with the zoning ordinance  

• Review/update Comprehensive Land Use Plan  

• Continued efforts on expansion of water plant  

• Continued dialogue with MSD regarding potential future expansion of sewer 

lines  

114



Town of Weaverville 
Strategic Plan 2018-2021 

 

 

  

 6 

 

• Building on collaboration with North Buncombe County to work to mutual 

advantages - “Welcoming of conversation among equals” with North Buncombe, 

as opposed to Weaverville looking like it is trying to take over  

• Ensuring good staff relationships and make sure that they are being taken care 

of financially; Sound financial planning; Dialogue with staff on risks, 

infrastructure  

 

4. Where do we go from here with the strategic planning process? 

 

• Engaging the public on this planning process 

• Allow department heads and key staff the opportunity to have input on the 

priorities addressed today - Allow department heads the opportunity to have 

input on regional issues 

• Calendaring goals, objectives and action steps 

• Determining who is responsible for goals, objectives and action steps 

• Development of final strategic plan  

• Budget for the action steps 

Development of the Strategic Plan 

 
Goals 

The theme of responses from question one resulted in the following goals for the 2018-

2021 Strategic Plan: 

1. To provide town services to meet the needs of the community. 

2. To improve regional collaboration. 

3. To maximize benefit to the Town in land use planning efforts. 

4. To promote a successful downtown. 

5. To increase legislative outreach. 

Objectives 

The second question during the Town Council Retreat served as an opportunity for Council 

to voice input towards the development of goals. Some objectives, action steps, were also 

gleaned from this step in the planning process. Town Council directed the Town Manager 

115



Town of Weaverville 
Strategic Plan 2018-2021 

 

 

  

 7 

 

to meet with Town staff to further develop achievable action steps to be presented for their 

final review, comment and approval. 

Goal 1:  To provide town services to meet the needs of the community. 

Objectives & Action Steps: 

A. Develop consensus on water and annexation growth and develop policies 

consistent with that consensus. 

 

1. Develop policy and procedures to guide Town Council in approving water 

allocations outside of Town limits. 

2. Consider the development of a formal voluntary annexation program. 

 

B. Revisit the relationship with Asheville Redefines Transit to consider re-

establishment of bus route given new residential development within the 

Town. 

 

C. Enhance the Town’s outreach to educate the public about the Town’s services. 

 

1. Continue the Citizens Academy. 

2. Continue fire prevention programs and participation in school events such as 

field days and career days. 

3. Continue community oriented policing programs, Cops for Kids, school 

programs, crime prevention programs, etc. 

4. Continue public education regarding services provided by the Public Works 

Department.  

 

D. Recognize the needs of each Town department in serving an ever-changing 

and growing population. 

 

1. Budget adequately to meet service demands (i.e. personnel, equipment, etc.) 

2. Maintain and update the capital improvements plan. 

3. Address performance objectives as they correlate to the Town vision and 

mission.  

4. Maintain Town facilities and equipment. 

  

116



Town of Weaverville 
Strategic Plan 2018-2021 

 

 

  

 8 

 

Goal 2:  To improve regional collaboration. 

Objectives & Action Steps: 

A. Strengthen relationship with the Asheville-Buncombe Economic Development 

Coalition and other economic development organizations. 

 

B. Recognize water as a regional resource and identify regional jurisdictions that 

wish to partner in water production, sale and distribution. 

 

C. Consistent involvement and collaboration with neighboring and regional 

jurisdictions in functional areas, such as police, fire, water resources, etc. 

 

1. Updates from department heads quarterly regarding regional efforts 

impacting the Town. 

2. Updates from the manager subsequent to manager meetings regarding 

regional efforts with potential impacts on the Town. 

3. Updates from the Mayor regarding regional efforts. 

 

D. Distribute information regarding regional programs, services and resources 

available to Town citizens. 

Goal 3:  To maximize benefit to the Town in land use planning efforts. 

Objectives & Action Steps: 

A. Development of tools to encourage balanced residential economic 

development. 

 

1. Revise Subdivision Ordinance to establish criteria and streamline subdivision 

approval process. 

 

2. Update economic development goals for the Town. 

 

B. Update the Town’s Comprehensive Land Use Plan 

 

1. Determine whether plan will be updated internally or externally. 

2. Complete update of the plan. 

3. Implement plan. 

117



Town of Weaverville 
Strategic Plan 2018-2021 

 

 

  

 9 

 

 

C. Investigate options for a geographic information system. 

 

1. Coordinate with Buncombe County to add the Town layer to County GIS. 

2. Assess previous mapping efforts, software and equipment. 

 

Goal 4:  To promote a successful downtown. 

Objectives & Action Steps: 

A. Consider a zoning district to serve as a transition between residential and 

commercial districts. 

 

B. Develop a mechanism to expand business opportunities along the central 

business district. 

 

C. Consider mixed-use development regulation as a means of expanding 

development in areas with geographic limitations. 

 

D. Provide information resources marketing downtown and its walkability. 

 

1. Development of and distribution of Town walkability (sidewalks) and parks 

map. 

2. Collaborate with the Weaverville Business Association (WBA) in marketing 

downtown restaurants, retail businesses, art studios, breweries and 

recreation amenities. 

 

E. Research grant opportunities for all Town operations and projects, as well as 

for downtown efforts. 

 

F. Act as a liaison between downtown churches and businesses to identify 

available parking downtown. 

 

1. Work with leaders from downtown churches to identify potential parking for 

business employees and visitors. 

2. Recognize downtown churches as community collaborators. 

3. Create and distribute maps showing parking options in downtown 

Weaverville. 

118



Town of Weaverville 
Strategic Plan 2018-2021 

 

 

  

 10 

 

Goal 5:  To increase legislative outreach. 

Objectives & Action Steps: 

A. Engage legislative representatives regarding the Town’s needs. 

 

1. Host meetings with legislative representatives periodically (especially before 

legislative sessions) to learn legislative priorities and to educate legislators 

on Town needs. 

2. Discuss need for collaborative development along the Town’s corporate 

limits to ease land use conflicts and encourage regional use of resources.  

 

B. Consider opportunities for potential special legislation as Town needs dictate. 

 

Implementation of the Strategic Plan 

 

The strategic plan will be used by the Mayor and Town Council and staff to provide 

direction for the governing body’s leadership role in our community and as a guide for the 

allocation of resources and prioritization of services provided by the Town. In planning for 

the future, the Town of Weaverville will be better prepared to respond to challenges and 

opportunities as they arise. 

 

As noted earlier, the strategic plan is only a document. Its real value is centered in the 

planning process and, more importantly, its implementation. While the Town may 

accomplish some of its action steps in the near term, the goals will likely guide our actions 

for the next several years. Goals, strategies and objectives should be reviewed annually. 

This review examines the extent to which the strategic issues have been addressed and 

goals achieved.  

  

119



Town of Weaverville 
Strategic Plan 2018-2021 

 

 

  

 11 

 

Appendix A:  Implementation Plan 
 

Goal 1:  To provide town services to meet the needs of the community. 

Objectives (followed by Action Steps) Responsibility Timeframe 

   

A. Develop consensus on water and annexation 
growth and develop policies consistent with that 
consensus. 
 

Town Council 
Planning Director 

Jan. 2019 

Action Steps:   

1) Develop policy or procedures to guide Town 
Council in approving water allocations 
outside of Town limits. 
 

Town Council  
Public Works Director 

Nov. 2018 

2) Consider the development of a formal 
voluntary annexation program. 

Planning Director 
Town Council 

 

Nov. 2018 

B. Reexamine Asheville Redefines Transit to 
consider re-establishment of bus route given 
new residential development within the Town. 
 

Councilman McKenna 
Town Council 

Year 2021 

C. Enhance the Town’s outreach to educate the 
public about the Town’s services. 
 

Town Staff Ongoing 

Action Steps:   
1) Continue the Citizens Academy. 
 

Town Manager 
Department Heads 

Ongoing 

 
2) Continue fire prevention programs and 

participation in school events such as field 
days and career days. 

 

Fire Chief 
Fire Department 

Ongoing 

3) Continue community oriented policing 
programs, Cops for Kids, school programs, 
crime prevention program, etc. 

 

Police Chief 
Police Department 

Ongoing 

4) Continue public education regarding services 
provided by the Public Works Department.  

 

Public Works Director 
Public Works Department 

Water Superintendent 

Ongoing 

   

120



Town of Weaverville 
Strategic Plan 2018-2021 

 

 

  

 12 

 

Objectives (followed by Action Steps) Responsibility Timeframe 

   

D. Recognize the needs of each Town department 
in serving an ever-changing and growing 
population. 
 

Town Council 
Town Manager 

Department Heads 

FY 2019; 
Ongoing 

Action Steps:   
1) Budget adequately to meet service demands 

(i.e. personnel, equipment, etc.) 
 

Town Manager 
Department Heads 

Town Council 

Annually 

2) Maintain and update the capital 
improvements plan. 

 

Town Manager 
Department Heads 

Annually 

3) Address performance objectives as they 
correlate to the Town vision and mission. 

Town Manager 
Department Heads 

Annually 

4) Maintain Town facilities and equipment. 
 

Town Manager 
Department Heads 

Ongoing 

  

121



Town of Weaverville 
Strategic Plan 2018-2021 

 

 

  

 13 

 

Goal 2:  To improve regional collaboration. 

Objectives (followed by Action Steps) Responsibility Timeframe 

   
A. Strengthen relationship with the Asheville-

Buncombe Economic Development Coalition and 
other economic development organizations. 

Town Manager 
Town Council 

Ongoing 

B. Recognize water as a regional resource and 
identify regional jurisdictions that wish to 
partner in water production, sale and 
distribution. 

Town Council  
Town Manager 

Public Works Director 
Water Superintendent 

Ongoing 

C. Consistent involvement and collaboration with 
neighboring and regional jurisdictions in 
functional areas, such as police, fire, water 
resources, etc. 
 

Town Council 
Town Manager 

Department Heads 

Ongoing 

Action Steps:   
1) Updates from department heads quarterly 

regarding regional efforts impacting the 
Town. 
 

Department Heads Quarterly 
 

2) Updates from the manager subsequent to 
manager meetings regarding regional efforts 
with potential impacts on the Town. 
 

Town Manager Quarterly 

3) Updates from the Mayor regarding regional 
efforts. 
 

Mayor Monthly 

D. Distribute information regarding regional 
programs, services and resources available to 
Town citizens. 

 

Town’s MSD Representative 
Town’s MPO Representative 

Mayor 
Town Manager 

Ongoing 

  

122



Town of Weaverville 
Strategic Plan 2018-2021 

 

 

  

 14 

 

Goal 3:  To maximize benefit to the Town in land use planning efforts. 

Objectives (followed by Action Steps) Responsibility Timeframe 

   

A. Development of tools to encourage balanced 
residential economic development. 
 

Town Council 
Planning Director 

Year 2019 

Action Steps:   
1) Revise Subdivision Ordinance to establish 

criteria and streamline subdivision approval 
process. 
 

Planning Director 
Planning & Zoning Board 

Jan. 2019 

2) Update economic development goals for the 
Town. 
 

Mayor Root 
Vice-Mayor Jackson 

Economic Development 
Advisory Committee 

 

Feb. 2019 

B. Update the Town’s Comprehensive Land Use 
Plan (CLUP). 

Planning Director 
Town Council 

June  2019 

   
Action Steps:   
1) Determine whether plan will be updated 

internally or externally. 
 

Town Council Sept. 2018 

2) Complete update of the plan. 
 

Planning Director June 2019 

3) Implement plan. 
 

Town Council 
Planning Director 

Town Manager 

July 2019 

C. Investigate options for a geographic information 
system. 
 

Town Manager 
Planning Director 

March 2019 

Action Steps:   
1) Coordinate with Buncombe County to add the 

Town layer to County GIS. 
 

Planning Director Feb. 2019 

2) Assess previous mapping efforts, software and 
equipment. 
 

Planning Director 
Town Manager 

Feb. 2019 

  

123



Town of Weaverville 
Strategic Plan 2018-2021 

 

 

  

 15 

 

Goal 4:  To promote a successful downtown.   

Objectives (followed by Action Steps) Responsibility Timeframe 

   

A. Consider a zoning district to serve as a 
transition between residential and commercial 
districts. 

Town Council 
Planning Director 

Planning & Zoning Board  

June 2019 
(CLUP) 

B. Develop a mechanism to expand business 
opportunities along the central business district. 

Planning Director 
Town Council 

June 2019 
(CLUP) 

C. Consider mixed-use development regulation as a 
means of expanding development in areas with 
geographic limitations. 

Town Council 
Planning Director 

 

D. Provide information resources marketing 
downtown and its walkability. 
 

Town Manager 
Town Staff 

April 2019 

Action Steps:   
1) Development of and distribution of Town 

walkability (sidewalks) and parks map. 
 

Public Works Director 
Town Manager 

April 2019 

2) Collaborate with the Weaverville Business 
Association (WBA) in marketing downtown 
restaurants, retail businesses, art studios, 
breweries and recreation amenities. 

Town Manager April 2019 

   
E. Research grant opportunities for all Town 

operations and projects, as well as for 
downtown efforts. 

 

Town Manager 
Department Heads 

Ongoing 

F. Act as a liaison between downtown churches 
and businesses to identify available parking 
downtown. 

 

Town Manager 
Public Works Director 

Ongoing 

Action Steps: 
 

  

1) Work with leaders from downtown churches 
to identify potential parking for business 
employees and visitors. 

 

Town Manager 
Public Works Director 

Feb. 2018 

2) Create and distribute maps showing parking 
options in downtown Weaverville. 

 

Public Works Director Apr. 2019 

  

124



Town of Weaverville 
Strategic Plan 2018-2021 

 

 

  

 16 

 

Goal 5:  To increase legislative outreach. 

Objectives (followed by Action Steps) Responsibility Timeframe 

   

A. Engage legislative representatives regarding the 
Town’s needs. 

 

Town Council 
Town Manager 

Jan. 2019 

Action Steps:   
1) Host meetings with legislative 

representatives periodically (especially 
before legislative sessions) to learn 
legislative priorities and to educate 
legislators on Town needs. 

 

Mayor 
Town Manager 

Ongoing 

2) Discuss need for collaborative development 
along the Town’s corporate limits to ease 
land use conflicts and encourage regional 
use of resources.  

 

Planning Director 
Town Council 

Town Manager 

Ongoing 

B. Consider opportunities for potential special 
legislation as Town needs dictate. 

Town Attorney Ongoing 

 

 

 

 

  

125



2018-2021 STRATEGIC PLAN IN BRIEF 

TOWN OF WEAVERVILLE 

Goal 1:  Provide town services to meet the needs of the community. 

Objective A: Development of tools to encourage balanced residential economic development. 

Objective B: Update economic development goals for the Town. 

Objective C: Update the Town’s Comprehensive Land Use Plan. 

Objective D: Investigate options for geographic information systems. 

Goal 5:  Increase legislative outreach. 

Objective A: Engage legislative representatives regarding the Town’s needs.  

Objective B: Consider opportunities for potential special legislation as Town needs dictate.  

Goal 2:  Improve regional collaboration. 

Objective A: Develop consensus on water and annexation growth and develop policies consistent with that consensus. 

Objective B: Revisit the relationship with Asheville Redefines Transit to consider re-establishment of bus route given new  
residential development within the Town. 

Objective C: Enhance the Town’s outreach to educate the public about the Town’s services. 

Objective D: Recognize the needs of each Town department in serving an ever-changing and growing population.  

Goal 3:  Maintain balance in land use planning efforts. 

Objective A:   Strengthen relationship with the Asheville-Buncombe Economic Development Coalition and other economic  
development organizations. 

Objective B: Recognize water as a regional resource and identify regional jurisdictions that wish to partner in water  
production, sale and distribution. 

Objective C: Consistent involvement and collaboration with neighboring and regional jurisdictions in functional areas, such 
as police, fire, water resources, etc. 

Objective D: Distribute information regarding regional programs, services and resources available to town citizens. 

Goal 4:  Promote a successful downtown. 

Objective A: Consider a zoning district to serve as a transition between residential and commercial districts.  

Objective B: Develop a mechanism to expand business opportunities along the central business district.  

Objective C: Consider mixed-use development regulation as a means of expanding development in areas with geographic 
limitations.  

Objective D: Provide information resources marketing downtown and its walkability. 

Objective E: Research grant opportunities for all Town operations and projects, as well as for downtown efforts. 

Objective F: Act as a liaison between downtown churches and businesses to identify available parking downtown. 

126



TOWN OF WEAVERVILLE 

TOWN COUNCIL AGENDA ITEM 

 

 

Date of Meeting:  November 13, 2018  

Subject:   2019 July 4 Celebration/Fireworks Discussion   

Presenter:   Town Manager 

Attachments: Email Correspondence from Pyrotecnico;  Pyrotecnico Proposal;  Site 

Plan 

 

Description: 

At the last Council meeting, Town Council asked that staff bring back additional information 

regarding fireworks staging locations for the 2019 July 4 display. This information is attached for 

review. As you will find in reviewing this information, we have looked at three staging locations, 

with recommendations from Pyrotecnico. These are as follows:  1) Traditional staging on the saddle 

dam at Lake Louise, 2) Staging on the baseball field at Weaverville Primary School and 3) Staging on 

the playground at Weaverville Primary School. The Town Manager has reached out to the Principal 

of Weaverville Primary School to schedule a meeting to discuss the potential for utilizing the 

School’s playground or ballfield for staging the fireworks and should have an update in that regard 

during Monday’s meeting.  

 

The Town Manager and Fire Chief will be available to answer any questions from Town Council. 

 

 

 

Council Action Requested: 

The Town Manager recommends that Town Council discuss and give direction to the Town 

Manager as to whether it wishes to proceed with moving the July 4 celebration and fireworks 

back to downtown 

 

127



1

Selena Coffey

From: Justin Pruett <jpruett@pyrotecnico.com>
Sent: Tuesday, November 13, 2018 10:40 AM
To: Selena Coffey
Subject: Re: Plan and Quote
Attachments: 190704 Town of Weaverville Proposal PDF.pdf; Town of Weaverville 2019 Ideas Site Plan PDF.pdf

Selena, 
 
Good morning and thanks for your time last week!  I have attached the site plan that shows our two potential spots at 
the school.  The playground and baseball field options.  The attached proposal shows a max of 2" which would be 
feasible from the ball field.  If we end up at the playground, the proposal would be nearly identical with the exception of 
the 2" devices being replaced with the same amount of smaller products.  Cost would be the same.  Cost would also be 
the same to perform the "normal" show out at the lake location. 
 
While we do have the required distances to do something like this, I want to say that there is a higher than average risk 
to the adjacent buildings (which we discussed).  We would need in writing, a comprehensive protection plan from the FD 
in order to perform in such close proximity to the school and town hall.  We may even want to consider boarding the 
windows of the school if we use the playground location.  I lean towards the ball field due to fewer windows and getting 
away from the membrane roofs.  Of course, the ball field is slightly lower and presents more site‐line issues.  
 
I want to be transparent that while this show is possible (with proper precautions) the viewing area in the downtown 
vicinity will be extremely limited compared to the lake.  And even more so if anyone still has a recollection of what the 
FD shot downtown years and years ago.  It will be night and day different.  Not that the show will be poor by any means 
for those who can see it, but it will be different and present visibility issues without a doubt. 
 
Our team is happy to be of service, but I must make my professional recommendation to use the traditional site, then 
the ball field, then the playground as our third choice. 
 
I have also attached a link below to the company who manufactures the pyro blanket we discussed. 
 
https://adlinsulflex.com/fire‐blankets/pyroblanket‐32‐oz/ 
 
 
Thanks! 
 
On Mon, Nov 12, 2018 at 2:55 PM, Selena Coffey <scoffey@weavervillenc.org> wrote: 

Hi Justin. I hope you are doing well. I wanted to follow up with you to see if you have a plan and quote prepared for our 
new fireworks staging area. I need to get this on Town Council’s agenda and will need the information by Wednesday. 
Please let me know if I can assist in any way. 

 
Thanks, 

Selena 

  

128

scoffey
Highlight

scoffey
Highlight

scoffey
Highlight

scoffey
Highlight

scoffey
Highlight

scoffey
Highlight



Town of Weaverville 
Weaverville, NC 

July 4, 2019

129



We produce each show with tireless dedication. We treat each employee, 
supplier, and regulator with respect. Individual and team initiative drives our 
company. Imaginative people are the core of our success. Insuring safety is 
our top priority. Great performances are our passion.

You have a vision for your event and Pyrotecnico will work tirelessly to design a 
spectacular display to match that vision. Our staff has an unrivaled passion for 
what we do and that results in superior customer service, advanced display 
designs, and safe certified/licensed pyrotechnicians for your event. 

130



Stephen Vitale - President & CEO - svitale@pyrotecnico.com 
As the President and CEO of Pyrotecnico, Stephen provides the leadership for all of our employees and creates the 
philosophy by which we excel. Stephen has 30 years of experience in the fireworks and special effects industries. 

Chris Mele - Chief Operations Officer - cmele@pyrotecnico.com 
With 22 years of experience, Chris oversees the day to day operations and communications, while managing all of 
the distribution points and facilities in Pyrotecnico’s nationwide network. 
  
Rocco Vitale - Creative Director & Show Designer - rvitale@pyrotecnico.com 
Rocco designs all shows and creative aspects of productions. Rocco has been in the business for 15 years. 
  
Rick Hoppe - Chief Financial Officer - rhoppe@pyrotecnico.com 
Rick oversees Pyrotecnico’s accounting department, and handles Pyrotecnico’s daily finances, insurance, and 
billing.  
  
Chris Liberatore - VP Sales - cliberatore@pyrotecnico.com 
Chris supervises the servicing of client accounts, ensuring that you are completely satisfied with our service and 
your crowd will experience the best show they have ever seen.  
  
Justin Pruett - Show Producer - jpruett@pyrotecnico.com 
Justin services client accounts, making sure that all aspects of your program are completed in a timely manner. 
  
Jody Briggs - Sales Assistant - jbriggs@pyrotecnico.com 
Jody aids Justin in obtaining all permits necessary for your event and making sure every detail of the preparation 
process has been addressed.

131

mailto:jbriggs@pyrotecnico.com
mailto:jbriggs@pyrotecnico.com


Client: Town of Weaverville 
  
Event Date: July 4, 2019 
  
Prepared for: Ms. Selena Coffey 
  
Contract Terms: 
50% deposit due upon signing of contract. The balance is due within 10 days of completed display. 
  
This Presentation Includes: 
• All necessary insurance to include 10 million dollar general liability insurance, 10 million in 
commercial transportation insurance, and state worker’s compensation. 
• Our trained technicians to produce the display. 
• All transportation and delivery costs. Transportation provided by our commercially licensed 
drivers. 
• All necessary safety precautions to provide a safe and spectacular display, assistance with local 
and state firework display permits. 
• The widest variety of top quality shell and special effects from around the globe that includes our 
own American products

132



Opening Presentation 
  
The Opening Presentation will start your display off “with a bang.” A “mini-finale” will excite the crowd and get them 
energized for a great show. 
  
2 - 49 Shot Quick Thunder Barrages 
2 - 49 Shot Quick Color Barrages 
  
196 Total Opening Shells 
  
Body 
  
The majority of your display will be fired during the Body presentation. It will have a balanced pace with constant 
action. Radiant color combinations like Violet & Lemon, Aqua & Pink, and the always treasured Red, White, & Blue. 
Amazing effects such as Crossette, Twitter Glittering, Rings, and Color Changing Chrysanthemums will be mixed in to 
illuminate your skies! 
  
240 2-inch Assorted Aerial Display Shells 
Note: Above shells will be individually fired or tied in combination flights of Two, Three, Five or Ten Shells per Flight 

240 Total Body Shells 

*Body continued on following page

133



Special Effect Barrages 
  
Special Effect Barrages will enhance your display in ways you haven’t seen before. The innovative firings and creative 
effects matched with imaginative color combinations will give your audience a one-of-a-kind presentation. Wave 
Willows, Red & Green Falling Leaves, Silver Whirl with Green Glittering Mines, and Lemon & Purple “X” Crossettes 
are just some of the effects that have brought crowds to their feet with their jaws dropping in amazement. 
  
  8 - 49 Shot Assorted Straight Barrages 
  8 - 49 Shot Assorted Angled Barrages 
  4 - 90 Shot Assorted Angled Barrages 
  6 - 100 Shot Assorted Angled Barrages 
10 - 100 Shot Assorted Straight Barrages 
 4  - 2-inch 25 Shot Multi Color Chrysanthemum Barrages 

 2,844 Total Barrage Shells 
  
Your Grand Finale Presentation 
  
The Grand Finale Presentation is the ultimate crowd pleaser and most exhilarating part of your display. When the sky 
erupts with Multi-Color Peonies and Thunderous Salutes, there is no better visual experience. They will end your event 
in style and leave the audience wanting more! 
  
10 - 49 Shot Quick Color Barrages 
10 - 49 Shot Quick THUNDER Barrages 
10 - 2-inch 25 Shot Multi Color Chrysanthemum Barrages 

1,230 Total Finale Shells

134



$18,000.00 Fireworks Display 

  

*Electronically- fired display 
**Estimated duration of 20-25 minutes 
***Town to provide all necessary road closures and provide required fire protection for all 
nearby structures and roofs.  Coverings, foam, etc required for all roofs.  
 

$18,000.00

135



136



137



Thank you for the time and consideration that you have given us. 

We recognize that your standards of excellence must be matched by the vendors that you select for any event. 
We are honored to have this opportunity to accomplish something spectacular for your organization, and will 
always strive to exceed expectations. 

Pyrotecnico will work tirelessly throughout this process to ensure that every element of the program runs smoothly. 
From permitting and license paperwork, to design and choreography, to the safe operation of your display, we 
will endeavor to provide peace-of-mind throughout our partnership. 

Thank you again and we look forward to hearing from you very soon. 

Justin Pruett | Show Producer 
800. 854. 4705 (Office)  
803. 271. 5944 (Cell)

138



RE
V

IS
ED

 D
A

TE
: 1

1/
12

/1
8

N
O

TE
S:

 
Si

te
 p

la
n 

is 
dr

aw
n 

to
 a

n 
ap

pr
ox

im
at

e 
sc

al
e 

us
in

g 
 

N
FP

A
 1

12
3,

 N
FP

A
 1

12
6 

or
 

N
FP

A
 1

60
 a

s 
ap

pl
ic

ab
le

.

To
w

n 
of

 W
ea

ve
rv

ill
e 

Ju
ly

 4
, 2

01
9 

Po
te

nt
ia

l S
ite

s

A
dd

re
ss

 T
BD

D
RA

W
N

 B
Y:

  
Ju

st
in

 P
ru

et
t

- C
lo

se
d

- A
ud

ie
nc

e

- S
af

et
y 

Fa
llo

ut
 Z

on
e

1.
5-

2”
 M

ax
im

um
 D

ev
ic

e 
Pe

r 
Py

ro
te

cn
ic

o 
10

0’
 P

er
 In

ch
 P

ol
ic

y

TB
D

 S
af

et
y 

Fa
ll 

O
ut

 R
ad

iu
s

- R
ad

iu
s

20
0’

15
0’

13
9



TOWN OF WEAVERVILLE 
TOWN COUNCIL AGENDA ITEM 

MEETING DATE: November 19, 2018 

SUBJECT: Sale of Old Bus Garage – 13 Central Avenue 

PRESENTER:  Town Manager 

ATTACHMENTS: Due Diligence Request and Agreement 
Apex Termite Treatment Estimate 
Sales Contract and Extension Agreement 

DESCRIPTION/SUMMARY OF REQUEST: 

The Town of Weaverville recently entered into a contract for the sale of its surplus 
property located at 13 Central Avenue to Lexington Glassworks. The examination period 
was extended through November 20, 2018 in order to allow Lexington Glassworks the 
opportunity to thoroughly inspect the property and obtain firm estimates on the repair 
work that is necessary on site. As previously reported to you, Lexington Glassworks 
submitted a request for a credit on the purchase price due to the extensive repair work 
that they anticipate must be undertaken; however, this request has been rescinded.  

As the examination period draws to a close Lexington Glassworks has requested that the 
Town perform the termite treatment for a current termite infestation on the property. The 
termite infestation was unknown to Town staff and not evident prior to the original offer 
being made by Lexington Glassworks. The Town Manager and Public Works Director, 
therefore, recommend that the Town provide the termite treatment out of funds within the 
Public Works budget, with no budget amendment being necessary.  

The Town’s real estate agent, Cindy Ward, has indicated that Lexington Glassworks is 
finalizing financing and is looking forward to closing on or about December 7th.  

TOWN COUNCIL ACTION REQUESTED: 

Town Council is asked to approve the attached Due Diligence Request and Agreement and 
allow a Town expenditure for the requested termite treatment out of the Public Works 
budget and to authorize the Mayor and appropriate staff to execute and deliver any and all 
closing documents for a closing to occur in early December.  

140



DUE DILIGENCE REQUEST AND AGREEMENT
[See Guidelines for completing this form (Standard form # 310G)]

, as Buyer,
, as Seller,and

have entered into an Offer to Purchase and Contract ("Contract") regarding the purchase and sale of the following property (insert
property address):

("Property").

1. Based upon Buyer's Due Diligence, the Buyer requests and the Seller agrees to the following:

In the event the parties have agreed to any adjustment in the condition of the Property, then such adjustment shall be completed prior
to Settlement in a good and workmanlike manner. Seller shall notify Buyer upon completion of the above and provide Buyer with
documentation thereof. Buyer shall have the right to verify that the items above have been completed in a good and workmanlike
manner. Unless otherwise indicated in the Contract or this Agreement, such verification shall be at Buyer's expense.

NOTE: If the parties agree herein to a change in the Purchase Price or the amount Seller agrees to pay toward Buyer’s expenses
associated with the purchase of the Property, the Agreement to Amend Contract (Form 4-T) should be completed and signed by the
parties to reflect the change. However, the parties’ failure to complete and sign Form 4-T will not affect the validity of any agreement
reached hereunder. Buyer is advised to confirm with Buyer’s lender that this amount will not exceed the amount lender will allow
Seller to contribute.

NOTE: Unless otherwise agreed, Buyer retains the right to conduct Due Diligence during the period agreed to in Paragraph 1(j),
Due Diligence Period, of the Offer to Purchase and Contract. Buyer is advised to consult with Buyer’s lender regarding this
Agreement and/or any Agreement to Amend Contract prior to the expiration of the Due Diligence Period.

2. Release of Inspection Reports: Buyer does does not agree to release any inspection reports to Seller.

3. Agreement: This agreement shall become effective on the date it has been signed by both parties. All changes, additions or deletions
hereto must be in writing and signed by all parties.

THE NORTH CAROLINA ASSOCIATION OF REALTORS®, INC. MAKES NO REPRESENTATION AS TO THE LEGAL
VALIDITY OR ADEQUACY OF ANY PROVISION OF THIS FORM IN ANY SPECIFIC TRANSACTION.

Buyer: Date Seller: Date

Seller: DateBuyer: Date

Entity Seller:Entity Buyer:

(Name of LLC/Corporation/Partnership/Trust/etc.)(Name of LLC/Corporation/Partnership/Trust/etc.)

By:By:

Name:Name:

Title:Title:

Date:Date:

Page 1 of 1
STANDARD FORM 310-T

North Carolina Association of REALTORS®, Inc. Revised 7/2018
© 7/2018

Phone: Fax:
Produced with zipForm® by zipLogix 18070 Fifteen Mile Road, Fraser, Michigan 48026 www.zipLogix.com

Lexington Glassworks
Town of Weaverville

13 Central Ave, Weaverville, NC  
 brick and block building on .19 acres PIN 9742-27-8468-00000

treat for termites

 per Apex estimate 9/28/18

Lexington Glassworks

Lexington Glassworks

G.K. Design

Arthur Guilford, Owner

Town of Weaverville

Town of Weaverville

Selena D. Coffey, MPA, ICMA-CM

Town Manager

Weaverville Realty, 2 South Main Street Weaverville NC 28787 8286580700 8286588444
Cynthia Ward

13 Central

DocuSign Envelope ID: 91154BF3-D497-45BF-8BE6-F4D1614D2527

11/13/2018

X

141



142



143



144



145



146



147



148



149



150



151



152



AGREEMENT TO EXTEND CONTRACT

(“Buyer”)
and (“Seller”)
have entered into an Agreement for Purchase and Sale of Real Property (Form 580-T) (“Agreement”) with respect to the purchase and
sale of the following property:

(“Property”).

Buyer and Seller hereby agree that the Agreement is modified as follows (if the box is checked, the provision applies):

The Examination Period is hereby extended until .

The consideration for extension of the Examination Period shall be $ and
shall be paid contemporaneously with the execution of this Agreement to Extend Contract.
(check only one of the below three boxes)

Amounts paid pursuant to this provision shall be deposited with Escrow Agent, shall be treated as Earnest Money
under the terms of the Agreement, shall be applicable to the Purchase Price and shall be refundable to Buyer in
the event of a termination of the Agreement pursuant to Section 6(e) of the Agreement;

Amounts paid pursuant to this provision shall not be applicable to the Purchase Price, shall be non-refundable
and shall be paid directly to the Seller and become the property of Seller upon payment by Buyer.

Amounts paid pursuant to this provision shall be applicable to the Purchase Price, shall be non-refundable and
shall be paid directly to the Seller and become the property of Seller upon payment by Buyer.

The Closing is hereby extended until .

The consideration for extension of the Closing shall be $ and shall be paid
contemporaneously with the execution of this Agreement to Extend Contract.
(check only one of the below three boxes)

Amounts paid pursuant to this provision shall be deposited with Escrow Agent, shall be treated as Earnest Money
under the terms of the Agreement, shall be applicable to the Purchase Price and shall be refundable to Buyer in
the event of a termination of the Agreement pursuant to Section 6(e) of the Agreement;

Amounts paid pursuant to this provision shall not be applicable to the Purchase Price, shall be non-refundable
and shall be paid directly to the Seller and become the property of Seller upon payment by Buyer.

Amounts paid pursuant to this provision shall be applicable to the Purchase Price, shall be non-refundable and
shall be paid directly to the Seller and become the property of Seller upon payment by Buyer.

Except as modified herein, the Agreement remains enforceable in accordance with its tenor as originally set forth.

Page 1 of 2

This form jointly approved by: STANDARD FORM 583-T
North Carolina Bar Association Revised 7/2017
North Carolina Association of REALTORS®, Inc. © 7/2018

Buyer Initials Seller Initials

Phone: Fax:
Produced with zipForm® by zipLogix 18070 Fifteen Mile Road, Fraser, Michigan 48026 www.zipLogix.com

Lexington Glassworks
Town of Weaverville

13 Central Ave, Weaverville, NC  

X November 20, 2018

X November 30, 2018

Weaverville Realty, 2 South Main Street Weaverville NC 28787
8286580700 8286588444 Cynthia Ward 13 Central

DocuSign Envelope ID: 10A6C856-C43F-42C9-8117-9BAEDFD30D42

153



THE NORTH CAROLINA ASSOCIATION OF REALTORS®, INC. AND THE NORTH CAROLINA BAR ASSOCIATION
MAKE NO REPRESENTATION AS TO THE LEGAL VALIDITY OR ADEQUACY OF ANY PROVISION OF THIS FORM IN
ANY SPECIFIC TRANSACTION. IF YOU DO NOT UNDERSTAND THIS FORM OR FEEL THAT IT DOES NOT PROVIDE
FOR YOUR LEGAL NEEDS, YOU SHOULD CONSULT A NORTH CAROLINA REAL ESTATE ATTORNEY BEFORE YOU
SIGN IT.

BUYER: SELLER:
Individual Individual

Date: Date:

Date: Date:

Business Entity Business Entity

(Name of Entity) (Name of Entity)
By: By:

Name: Name:

Title: Title:

Date: Date:

Page 2 of 2

STANDARD FORM 583-T
Revised 7/2017

© 7/2018

Produced with zipForm® by zipLogix 18070 Fifteen Mile Road, Fraser, Michigan 48026 www.zipLogix.com

Lexington Glassworks

Lexington Glassworks

G.K. Design

Arthur Guilford, Owner

Town of Weaverville

Town of Weaverville

Selena D. Coffey, MPA, ICMA-CM

Town Manager

13 Central

DocuSign Envelope ID: 10A6C856-C43F-42C9-8117-9BAEDFD30D42

10/26/2018

154



TOWN	OF	WEAVERVILLE	

TOWN	COUNCIL	AGENDA	ITEM	

	

	

Date	of	Meeting:	 	 November 19, 2018	  

Subject:	 	 	 Departmental Quarterly Report:  Police Department  

Presenter:	 	 	 Police Chief 

Attachments:	 	 	 Quarterly Report 

	

Description:	

Attached please find the quarterly report.  
 

 

	

Council	Action	Requested:	

No action requested. 

	

155



156



157



158



159



TOWN	OF	WEAVERVILLE	

TOWN	COUNCIL	AGENDA	ITEM	

	

	

Date	of	Meeting:	 	 November 19, 2018	 	  

Subject:	 	 	 Fire Department Quarterly Report 

Presenter:	 	 	 Ted Williams, Fire Chief	 	

Attachments:	 	 	 Yes	  

	

Description:	

Presentation of fire department’s quarterly report detailing emergency responses, educational 

events, child passenger safety contacts as well as business inspections. 

	

Council	Action	Requested:	

None 

	

160



Weaverville Fire Department
August 1, 2018 through October 31, 2018 Activites

Fire Inside City Property Loss Outside City Property Loss

Brush / Woods 3 0 3 0
Vehicle 2 7,300 0 0
Structure 3 8,000 2 228,300
Investigation 20 0 25 0
Haz-mat Incident 1 0 2 0
Mutual Aid 0 0 39 0
Fire Alarm Activation 23 0 3 0
Public Assistance 10 0 5 0
TOTAL (Fire) 62 15,300 79 228,300

Rescue

MVA \ MCA 18 0 22 0
EMS \ FR \ Rescue 132 0 125 0
Mutual Aid 0 0 5 0
Search 0 0 0 0
TOTAL (Rescue) 150 0 152 0

    
TOTAL Fire & Rescue 212 15,300 231 228,300

Remarks: Total Fire\Rescue Alarms:  443
Total Fire Loss:  $243,600 Total Saved: 591,200
Total Inspections:   38

Education and Community Outreach numbers attached

Date: 11/12/2018 TW

161



162


	September 11, 2018 Town Council Special Called Mtg - Workshop Minutes
	October 15 2018 -Town Council Special Called Meeting Minutes - with jj revisions
	October 15 2018 -Town Council Meeting Minutes - with jj revisions
	Monthly Tax Report for 11-13-18
	Tax Release - November 2018
	Lake Louise Property Donation - Acceptance of Donation - November 2018
	CLUP Project - Staff Update - November 2018
	Lake Louise Community Center Project - Architect Agreement Approval - November 2018
	TM Report Nov 2018
	Audit Presentation 11-19-18
	Audit Presentation - ABC Board - November 2018
	Strategic Plan
	Jul4-Fireworks Agenda Item-Nov 2018
	Sale of Old Bus Garage Property - November 2018
	PD Qtrly Report Nov 2018 agenda item
	FD Qtrly Report Nov 2018 agenda item



